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INPOINT COMMERCIAL REAL ESTATE INCOME, INC.
SUPPLEMENT NO. 8 DATED AUGUST 16, 2021 TO THE

PROSPECTUS DATED MARCH 19, 2021

This prospectus supplement no. 7 (this “Supplement”) is part of and should be read in conjunction with the base prospectus of InPoint 
Commercial Real Estate Income, Inc. dated March 19, 2021, prospectus supplement no. 1 dated April 15, 2021, prospectus 
supplement no. 2 dated April 29, 2021, prospectus supplement no. 3 dated May 17, 2021, prospectus supplement no. 4 dated June 15, 
2021, prospectus supplement no. 5 dated July 8, 2021, prospectus supplement no. 6 dated July 12, 2021, and prospectus supplement 
no. 7 dated July 15, 2021 (collectively, the “prospectus”). Unless otherwise defined herein, capitalized terms used in this Supplement 
shall have the same meanings as in the prospectus.

The purposes of this Supplement are as follows:

• to disclose the transaction price as of September 1, 2021, the first business day of the month, for each class of our common 
stock being offered and sold in this offering; and

• to disclose our NAV per share as of July 31, 2021; 
• to update the description of the limitation on repurchases pursuant to our share repurchase plan for the months of July, 

August and September of 2021; and
• to include our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2021.

Transaction Prices

The transaction price for each share class of our common stock for subscriptions to be accepted as of September 1, 2021, the first 
business day of the month, and for distribution reinvestments is as follows:

  
Transaction 

Price (per share)  
Class A  $ 20.3267 
Class T  $ 20.3256 
Class S  $ 20.2862 
Class D  $ 20.3219 
Class I  $ 20.3274  

As of July 31, 2021, we had not sold any Class S shares. The September 1, 2021 transaction price for our Class S shares is based on 
our aggregate NAV for all share classes as of July 31, 2021. The purchase price of our common stock for each share class equals the 
transaction price of such class, plus applicable upfront selling commissions and dealer manager fees. A detailed calculation of the 
NAV per share is set forth below. No transactions or events have occurred since July 31, 2021 that would have a material impact on 
our NAV per share.

July 31, 2021 NAV per Share

We calculate NAV per share in accordance with the valuation guidelines that have been approved by our board of directors. Our NAV 
per share, which is updated as of the last calendar day of each month, is posted on our website at www.inland-investments.com/inpoint. 
Please refer to “Net Asset Value Calculation and Valuation Guidelines” in the prospectus, as supplemented, for how our NAV is 
determined. The Advisor is ultimately responsible for determining our NAV. The valuation of our commercial real estate loan 
portfolio is reviewed by our independent valuation advisor. We have included a breakdown of the components of total NAV and NAV 
per share for July 31, 2021.

https://inland-investments.com/inpoint


Our total NAV presented in the following table includes the NAV of our Class A, Class T, Class S, Class D, and Class I common stock 
being sold in this offering, as well as our Class P common stock, which is not being sold in this offering. As of July 31, 2021, we had 
not sold any Class S shares. The following table provides a breakdown of the major components of our total NAV as of July 31, 2021 
($ and shares in thousands, except per share data):

Components of NAV  July 31, 2021  
Commercial mortgage loans  $ 534,227 
Real estate owned, net   14,000 
Cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash   56,321 
Other assets   6,714 
Repurchase agreements - commercial mortgage loans   (352,671)
Credit facility payable   (14,350)
Reserve for negative impact of COVID on real estate owned (1)   (1,226)
Due to related parties   (2,096)
Distributions payable   (1,190)
Interest payable   (352)
Accrued stockholder servicing fees (2)   (90)
Other liabilities   (6,807)
Net asset value  $ 232,480 
Number of outstanding shares   11,460 
Aggregate NAV per share  $ 20.2862  

(1) As of December 31, 2020, we established as a component of the NAV calculation a $2,250 reserve for the 
estimated negative impact of COVID-19 during 2021 on real estate owned. The reduction in this reserve as of July 
31, 2021 from June 30, 2021 resulted from the net loss on real estate owned set forth below. Because we had 
already established a reserve for losses, the monthly loss on real estate owned as of July 31, 2021 has no negative 
effect on the NAV. Below is a reconciliation of the reserve ($ in thousands):

Beginning reserve balance as of June 30, 2021  $ (1,439)
Plus: Net loss on real estate owned for July:     

Revenue from real estate owned   816 
Real estate owned operating expense   (1,061)
Non-cash adjustment for ground lease   32 

Net loss from real estate owned   (213)
Reserve balance as of July 31, 2021  $ (1,226)

(2) Stockholder servicing fees only apply to Class T, Class S, and Class D shares. For purposes of NAV, we recognize 
the stockholder servicing fee as a reduction of NAV on a monthly basis as such fee is paid. Under accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America (“GAAP”), we accrue the full cost of the 
stockholder servicing fee as an offering cost at the time we sell Class T, Class S, and Class D shares. As of July 
31, 2021, we have accrued under GAAP $723 of stockholder servicing fees payable to the Dealer Manager related 
to the Class T and Class D shares sold. As of July 31, 2021, we have not sold any Class S shares and, therefore, 
we have not accrued any stockholder servicing fees payable to the Dealer Manager related to Class S shares. The 
Dealer Manager does not retain any of these fees, all of which are retained by, or reallowed (paid) to, participating 
broker-dealers and servicing broker-dealers for ongoing stockholder services performed by such broker-dealers.

The following table provides a breakdown of our total NAV and NAV per share by share class as of July 31, 2021 ($ and shares in 
thousands, except per share data):

NAV Per Share  Class P   Class A   Class T   Class S   Class D   Class I   Total  
Net asset value  $ 202,255  $ 13,301  $ 8,099  $ —  $ 962  $ 7,856  $ 232,480 
Number of outstanding shares   9,973   654   398   —   47   386   11,460 
NAV per share as of July 31, 2021  $ 20.2803  $ 20.3267  $ 20.3256  $ —  $ 20.3219  $ 20.3274  $ 20.2862  

Share Repurchase Plan



The description of the limitation on repurchases pursuant to our share repurchase plan under “SHARE REPURCHASES—
Repurchase Limitations” on page 176 of the base prospectus and the other descriptions of the repurchase limitations elsewhere in the 
prospectus are each updated as follows to reflect the amount repurchased for the month of July 2021:

On July 1, 2021, our SRP was reinstated for all stockholders. The first settlement of permitted repurchase requests was on July 30, 
2021, the last business day of the month. In accordance with the terms of the SRP that allow us to repurchase fewer shares than the 
maximum amount permitted under the SRP, for the month of July, we repurchased an amount of shares equal to an aggregate purchase 
price of 1.7% of the aggregate NAV as of June 30, 2021. For the months of August and September 2021, the total amount of aggregate 
repurchases of shares is expected to be limited to no more than 1% of our aggregate NAV per month as of the last day of the previous 
calendar month and for the third quarter we expect to repurchase no more than 2.5% of our aggregate NAV measured as of June 30, 
2021, but the actual amounts repurchased may be less or more than the expected amounts up to the maximum limits provided for in 
the SRP. Beginning on October 1, 2021, the total amount of aggregate repurchases of shares is limited as set forth in the SRP (no more 
than 2% of our aggregate NAV per month as of the last day of the previous calendar month and no more than 5% of our aggregate 
NAV per calendar quarter with NAV measured as of the last day of the previous calendar quarter). Notwithstanding the foregoing, we 
may repurchase fewer shares than the limits in the SRP in any month or quarter, or none. Further, our board may modify, suspend or 
terminate our SRP if it deems such action to be in our best interest and the best interest of our stockholders.

Quarterly Report for the Quarter Ended June 30, 2021

On August 13, 2021, we filed with the SEC our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2021, a copy of which 
is attached to the Supplement as Appendix A (without exhibits). This Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q updates all applicable 
disclosures in the prospectus. 
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Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a non-accelerated filer, a smaller 
reporting company, or an emerging growth company. See the definitions of “large accelerated filer,” “accelerated filer,” “smaller 
reporting company,” and “emerging growth company” in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act. 
 

Large accelerated filer ☐ Accelerated filer ☐
Non-accelerated filer ☒ Smaller Reporting Company ☒
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If an emerging growth company, indicate by check mark if the registrant has elected not to use the extended transition period for 
complying with any new or revised financial accounting standards provided pursuant to Section 13(a) of the Exchange Act.  ☒
Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act).  Yes ☐    No ☒ 

As of August 12, 2021, the Registrant had the following shares outstanding: 9,972,968 shares of Class P common stock, 398,457 
shares of Class T common stock, 386,497 shares of Class I common stock, 654,377 shares of Class A common stock, 47,343 shares of 
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INPOINT COMMERCIAL REAL ESTATE INCOME, INC. 

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

(Dollar amounts in thousands, except share data) 

  
June 30, 2021
(unaudited)   December 31, 2020  

ASSETS      
Cash and cash equivalents  $ 51,943  $ 72,107 
Commercial mortgage loans at cost   555,637   441,814 
Real estate owned, net of depreciation   31,968   32,474 
Finance lease right of use asset, net of amortization   5,489   5,525 
Deferred debt finance costs   1,194   1,001 
Accrued interest receivable   1,315   1,168 
Prepaid expenses and other assets   1,388   902 

Total assets  $ 648,934  $ 554,991 

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY         
Liabilities:         
Repurchase agreements—commercial mortgage loans   371,848   290,699 
Credit facility payable   14,350   — 
Finance lease liability   16,943   16,790 
Loan fees payable   81   401 
Due to related parties   2,382   2,093 
Accrued interest payable   351   292 
Distributions payable   1,207   867 
Accrued expenses   3,471   3,593 

Total liabilities   410,633   314,735 
Stockholders’ Equity:         
Class P common stock, $0.001 par value, 500,000,000 shares authorized,
   10,142,801 and 10,151,787 shares issued and outstanding at June 30,
   2021 and December 31, 2020, respectively   10   10 
Class A common stock, $0.001 par value, 500,000,000 shares authorized, 660,884
   and 655,835 shares issued and outstanding as of June 30, 2021 and December 31,
   2020, respectively

 

 1   1 
Class T common stock, $0.001 par value, 500,000,000 shares authorized, 400,774
   and 398,233 shares issued and outstanding as of June 30, 2021 and December 31,
   2020, respectively  —   — 
Class S common stock, $0.001 par value, 500,000,000 shares authorized, 0 shares
   issued and outstanding as of June 30, 2021 and December 31, 2020, respectively  —   — 
Class D common stock, $0.001 par value, 500,000,000 shares authorized, 51,173 and
   50,393 shares issued and outstanding as of June 30, 2021 and December 31, 2020,
   respectively  —   — 
Class I common stock, $0.001 par value, 500,000,000 shares authorized, 386,510 and
   381,955 shares issued and outstanding as of June 30, 2021 and December 31, 2020,
   respectively  —   — 
Additional paid in capital (net of offering costs of $25,409 and $24,964 at June 30,
   2021 and December 31, 2020, respectively)   287,150   287,498 
Accumulated deficit   (48,860)   (47,253)
Total stockholders’ equity   238,301   240,256 

Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity  $ 648,934  $ 554,991  

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
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INPOINT COMMERCIAL REAL ESTATE INCOME, INC. 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS 

(Unaudited, dollar amounts in thousands, except share data) 

  Three months ended June 30,   Six months ended June 30,  
  2021   2020   2021   2020  

Income:                 
Interest income  $ 7,223  $ 8,759  $ 13,674  $ 19,115 
Less: Interest expense   (2,231)   (2,683)   (4,125)   (6,645)

Net interest income   4,992   6,076   9,549   12,470 
Revenue from real estate owned   1,744   —   2,612   — 

Total income   6,736   6,076   12,161   12,470 
Operating expenses:                 

Advisory fee   737   1,557   1,474   2,401 
Debt finance costs   380   304   811   558 
Directors compensation   13   24   34   48 
Professional service fees   282   1,294   506   1,512 
Real estate owned operating expenses   1,457   —   3,612   — 
Depreciation and amortization   273   —   545   — 
Other expenses   296   247   516   472 

Total operating expenses   3,438   3,426   7,498   4,991 
Other income (loss):                 

Provision for loan losses   —   (1,265)   —   (5,765)
Realized loss on sale of commercial loan   —   (375)   —   (375)
Unrealized gain (loss) in value of real estate securities   —   19,284   —   (18,903)
Realized loss on the sale of real estate securities   —   (19,288)   —   (19,288)

Total other income (loss)   —   (1,644)   —   (44,331)
Net income (loss)  $ 3,298  $ 1,006  $ 4,663  $ (36,852)

Net income (loss) per share basic and diluted  $ 0.28  $ 0.09  $ 0.40  $ (3.21)
Weighted average number of shares                 

Basic   11,640,258   11,630,987   11,640,606   11,490,217 
Diluted   11,640,520   11,631,304   11,640,707   11,490,217  

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements



4

INPOINT COMMERCIAL REAL ESTATE INCOME, INC. 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY 

 (Unaudited, dollar amounts in thousands) 

For the three months ended June 30, 2021
Par Value

Common Stock
 

            

 Class P   Class A   Class T   Class S   Class D   Class I   

Additional
Paid in
Capital   

Accumulated 
Deficit   

Total
Stockholders’

Equity  
Balance as of March 31, 2021 $ 10  $ 1  $ —  $ —  $ —  $ —  $ 287,228  $ (48,780)  $ 238,459 
Proceeds from issuance of common stock  —   —   —   —   —   —   —   —   — 
Offering costs  —   —   —   —   —   —   (169)   —   (169)
Net income  —   —   —   —   —   —   —   3,298   3,298 
Distributions declared  —   —   —   —   —   —   —   (3,378)   (3,378)
Distribution reinvestment  —   —   —   —   —   —   140   —   140 
Redemptions  —   —   —   —   —   —   (56)   —   (56)
Equity-based compensation  —   —   —   —   —   —   7   —   7 
Balance as of June 30, 2021 $ 10  $ 1  $ —  $ —  $ —  $ —  $ 287,150  $ (48,860)  $ 238,301  

For the three months ended June 30, 2020
Par Value

Common Stock
 

            

 Class P   Class A   Class T   Class S   Class D   Class I   

Additional
Paid in
Capital   

Accumulated 
Deficit   

Total
Stockholders’

Equity  
Balance as of March 31, 2020 $ 10  $ 1  $ —  $ —  $ —  $ —  $ 288,030  $ (51,190)  $ 236,851 
Proceeds from issuance of common stock  —   —   —   —   —   —   —   —   — 
Offering costs  —   —   —   —   —   —   (335)   —   (335)
Net income  —   —   —   —   —   —   —   1,006   1,006 
Distributions declared  —   —   —   —   —   —   —   —   — 
Distribution reinvestment  —   —   —   —   —   —   —   —   — 
Redemptions  —   —   —   —   —   —   —   —   — 
Equity-based compensation  —   —   —   —   —   —   8   —   8 
Balance as of June 30, 2020 $ 10  $ 1  $ —  $ —  $ —  $ —  $ 287,703  $ (50,184)  $ 237,530  

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
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INPOINT COMMERCIAL REAL ESTATE INCOME, INC. 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY 

(Unaudited, dollar amounts in thousands)

For the six months ended June 30, 2021
Par Value

Common Stock
 

            

 Class P   Class A   Class T   Class S   Class D   Class I   

Additional
Paid in
Capital   

Accumulated 
Deficit   

Total
Stockholders’

Equity  
Balance as of December 31, 2020 $ 10  $ 1  $ —  $ —  $ —  $ —  $ 287,498  $ (47,253)  $ 240,256 
Proceeds from issuance of common stock  —   —   —   —   —   —   1   —   1 
Offering costs  —   —   —   —   —   —   (445)   —   (445)
Net income  —   —   —   —   —   —   —   4,663   4,663 
Distributions declared  —   —   —   —   —   —   —   (6,270)   (6,270)
Distribution reinvestment  —   —   —   —   —   —   260   —   260 
Redemptions  —   —   —   —   —   —   (181)   —   (181)
Equity-based compensation  —   —   —   —   —   —   17   —   17 
Balance as of June 30, 2021 $ 10  $ 1  $ —  $ —  $ —  $ —  $ 287,150  $ (48,860)  $ 238,301  

For the six months ended June 30, 2020
Par Value

Common Stock
 

            

 Class P   Class A   Class T   Class S   Class D   Class I   

Additional
Paid in
Capital   

Accumulated 
Deficit   

Total
Stockholders’

Equity  
Balance as of December 31, 2019 $ 10  $ —  $ —  $ —  $ —  $ —  $ 265,963  $ (9,807)  $ 256,166 
Proceeds from issuance of common stock  —   1   —   —   —   —   24,260   —   24,261 
Offering costs  —   —   —   —   —   —   (1,900)   —   (1,900)
Net loss  —   —   —   —   —   —   —   (36,852)   (36,852)
Distributions declared  —   —   —   —   —   —   —   (3,525)   (3,525)
Distribution reinvestment  —   —   —   —   —   —   127   —   127 
Redemptions  —   —   —   —   —   —   (763)   —   (763)
Equity-based compensation  —   —   —   —   —   —   16   —   16 
Balance as of June 30, 2020 $ 10  $ 1  $ —  $ —  $ —  $ —  $ 287,703  $ (50,184)  $ 237,530  

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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INPOINT COMMERCIAL REAL ESTATE INCOME, INC. 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 

(Unaudited, dollar amounts in thousands) 

  For the six months ended June 30,  
  2021   2020  

Cash flows from operating activities:         
Net income (loss)  $ 4,663  $ (36,852)
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to cash provided by operations:         

Net realized loss on real estate securities   —   19,288 
Net unrealized loss on real estate securities   —   18,903 
Provision for loan losses   —   5,765 
Realized loss on sale of commercial mortgage loan   —   375 
Depreciation and amortization expense   545   — 
Reduction in the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset   36   — 
Amortization of equity-based compensation   17   16 
Amortization of debt finance costs to operating expense   811   558 
Amortization of debt finance costs to interest expense   31   39 
Amortization of bond discount   —   (309)
Amortization of origination fees   (440)   (821)
Amortization of deferred exit fees   5   — 
Amortization of loan extension fees   (195)   — 

Changes in assets and liabilities:         
Accrued interest receivable   (147)   372 
Accrued expenses   (122)   606 
Loan fees payable   (320)   126 
Accrued interest payable   212   (311)
Due to related parties   84   585 
Prepaid expenses and other assets   (486)   119 

Net cash provided by operating activities   4,694   8,459 
Cash flows from investing activities:         

Origination of commercial loans   (137,951)   (55,018)
Loan extension fees received on commercial loans   146   — 
Principal repayments of commercial loans   24,852   47,036 
Proceeds from sale of commercial loan   —   9,625 
Acquisition of real estate owned and capital expenditures   (39)   — 
Proceeds from real estate securities sold   —   43,928 
Real estate securities principal paydown   —   2,156 

Net cash (used in) provided by investing activities   (112,992)   47,727 
Cash flows from financing activities:         

Proceeds from issuance of common stock   1   24,261 
Redemptions of common stock   (181)   (763)
Payment of offering costs   (480)   (1,467)
Proceeds from repurchase agreements   99,099   520,663 
Principal repayments of repurchase agreements   (17,932)   (590,714)
Proceeds from credit facility   14,350   — 
Debt finance costs   (1,053)   (770)
Distributions paid   (5,670)   (5,098)

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities   88,134   (53,888)
Net change in cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash   (20,164)   2,298 
Cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash at beginning of period   72,107   37,639 
Cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash at end of period  $ 51,943  $ 39,937 

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:         
Amortization of deferred exit fees due to related party  $ 240  $ 273 

Interest paid  $ 4,067  $ 6,956 

Deferred interest capitalized on commercial loan  $ —  $ 128 

Accrued stockholder servicing fee due to related party  $ (35)  $ 433 

Distribution reinvestment  $ 260  $ 127  

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements 
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Note 1 – Organization and Business Operations 

InPoint Commercial Real Estate Income, Inc. (the “Company”) was incorporated in Maryland on September 13, 2016 to originate, 
acquire and manage a diversified portfolio of commercial real estate (“CRE”) investments primarily comprised of floating-rate CRE 
debt, including first mortgage loans, subordinate mortgage and mezzanine loans, and participations in such loans. The Company may 
also invest in floating-rate CRE securities, such as commercial mortgage-backed securities (“CMBS”), and senior unsecured debt of 
publicly traded real estate investment trusts (“REITs”), and select equity investments in single-tenant, net leased properties. Substantially 
all of the Company’s business is conducted through InPoint REIT Operating Partnership, LP (the “Operating Partnership”), a Delaware 
limited partnership. The Company is the sole general partner and directly or indirectly holds all limited partner interests in the Operating 
Partnership. The Company has elected to be taxed as a REIT for U.S. federal income tax purposes.

The Company is externally managed by Inland InPoint Advisor, LLC (the “Advisor”), a Delaware limited liability company formed in 
August 2016 that is a wholly owned indirect subsidiary of Inland Real Estate Investment Corporation, a member of The Inland Real 
Estate Group of Companies, Inc. The Advisor is responsible for coordinating the management of the day-to-day operations and 
originating, acquiring and managing the Company’s CRE investment portfolio, subject to the supervision of the Company’s board of 
directors (the “Board”). The Advisor performs its duties and responsibilities as the Company’s fiduciary pursuant to an advisory 
agreement dated April 29, 2019 among the Company, the Operating Partnership and the Advisor (the “Advisory Agreement”). 

The Advisor has delegated certain of its duties to SPCRE InPoint Advisors, LLC (the “Sub-Advisor”), a Delaware limited liability 
company formed in September 2016 that is a wholly owned subsidiary of Sound Point CRE Management, LP, pursuant to an amended 
and restated sub-advisory agreement between the Advisor and the Sub-Advisor dated April 29, 2019. Among other duties, the Sub-
Advisor has the authority to identify, negotiate, acquire and originate the Company’s investments and provide portfolio management, 
disposition, property management and leasing services to the Company. Notwithstanding such delegation to the Sub-Advisor, the 
Advisor retains ultimate responsibility for the performance of all the matters entrusted to it under the Advisory Agreement, including 
those duties which the Advisor has not delegated to the Sub-Advisor such as (i) valuation of the Company’s assets and calculation of 
the Company’s net asset value (“NAV”); (ii) management of the Company’s day-to-day operations; (iii) preparation of stockholder 
reports and communications and arrangement of the Company’s annual stockholder meeting; and (iv) advising the Company regarding 
its initial qualification as a REIT for U.S. federal income tax purposes and monitoring its ongoing compliance with the REIT 
qualification requirements thereafter. 

On October 25, 2016, the Company commenced a private offering (the “Private Offering”) of up to $500,000 in shares of Class P 
common stock (“Class P shares”). Inland Securities Corporation, an affiliate of the Advisor (the “Dealer Manager”), was the dealer 
manager for the Private Offering. The Company issued 10,258,094 Class P shares in the Private Offering, resulting in gross proceeds of 
$276,681 and terminated the Private Offering on June 28, 2019, in anticipation of selling shares in a registered public offering. 

On May 3, 2019, the Company commenced its public offering of up to $2,350,000 of shares of its common stock (the “IPO”) registered 
with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”) on Form S-11 (File No. 333-230465, the “Registration Statement”). The 
purchase price per share for each class of common stock in the IPO (Class A, Class I, Class D, Class S and Class T) varies and generally 
equals the prior month’s NAV per share, as determined monthly, plus applicable upfront selling commissions and dealer manager fees. 
The Dealer Manager serves as the Company’s exclusive dealer manager for the IPO on a best efforts basis. 

On March 24, 2020, the Board suspended (i) the sale of shares in the IPO, (ii) the operation of the share repurchase program (the “SRP”), 
(iii) the payment of distributions to the Company’s stockholders, and (iv) the operation of the distribution reinvestment plan (the “DRP”), 
effective as of April 6, 2020. In determining to take these actions, the Board considered various factors, including the impact of the 
COVID-19 pandemic on the economy, the inability to accurately calculate the Company’s NAV per share due to uncertainty, volatility 
and lack of liquidity in the market, the Company’s need for liquidity due to financing challenges related to additional collateral required 
by the banks that regularly finance the Company’s assets and these uncertain and rapidly changing economic conditions. 

Though the Company did not calculate the NAV for the months of March through May 2020, the Advisor resumed calculating the NAV 
beginning as of June 30, 2020 following its determination that there has been reduced volatility in the market for the Company’s 
investments and some improvement in the U.S. economic outlook. In August 2020, the Company resumed paying distributions monthly 
to stockholders of record for all classes of its common stock. On October 1, 2020, the SEC declared effective the Company’s post-
effective amendment to the Registration Statement, thereby permitting the Company to resume offers and sales of shares of common 
stock in the IPO, including through the DRP. On March 1, 2021, the SRP was reinstated for the Company’s stockholders requesting 
repurchase of shares as a result of the death or qualified disability of the holder. 

The Board has also approved the reinstatement of the SRP for all stockholders, effective July 1, 2021. Repurchase requests must be 
submitted on or after July 1, 2021. The first settlement of permitted repurchase requests will be on July 30, 2021, the last business day 
of the month. In accordance with the terms of the SRP that allow the Company to repurchase fewer shares than the maximum amount 
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permitted under the SRP, for the months of August and September 2021, the total amount of aggregate repurchases of shares is expected 
to be limited to no more than 1% of the Company’s aggregate NAV per month as of the last day of the previous calendar month and no 
more than 2.5% of the Company’s aggregate NAV per calendar quarter with NAV measured as of the last day of the previous calendar 
quarter. Beginning on October 1, 2021, the total amount of aggregate repurchases of shares will be limited as set forth in the SRP (no 
more than 2% of the Company’s aggregate NAV per month as of the last day of the previous calendar month and no more than 5% of 
the Company’s aggregate NAV per calendar quarter with NAV measured as of the last day of the previous calendar quarter). 
Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Company may repurchase fewer shares than these limits in any month, or none. Further, the Board 
may modify, suspend or terminate the SRP if it deems such action to be in the Company’s best interest and the best interest of its 
stockholders.

Please refer to “Note 15 – Subsequent Events” for updates to the Company’s business after June 30, 2021.

Note 2 – Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

Disclosures discussing all significant accounting policies are set forth in the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended 
December 31, 2020 (the “Annual Report”), as filed with the SEC on March 19, 2021, under the heading “Note 2 – Summary of 
Significant Accounting Policies.” The Company has added to its significant accounting policies for the six months ended June 30, 2021 
as a result of the draw on its credit facility.

Basis of Accounting 

The accompanying consolidated financial statements and related footnotes have been prepared in conformity with U.S. generally 
accepted accounting principles (“GAAP”) and require management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts 
of assets and liabilities as of the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of income and expenses during the reported 
periods. Actual results could differ from such estimates.

In the opinion of management, the accompanying unaudited consolidated financial statements reflect all adjustments, which are normal 
and recurring in nature, necessary for fair financial statement presentation.

Credit Facility Payable

The Company has a credit facility to finance the acquisition or origination of commercial mortgage loans. This credit facility, when 
drawn upon, is accounted for as debt. The fees paid for this credit facility are recorded in deferred debt finance costs on the consolidated 
balance sheet and are amortized straight line over the period of the agreement to debt finance costs on the consolidated statement of 
operations. For further information on the credit facility, see “Note 5 – Repurchase Agreements and Credit Facilities.” 

Cash, Cash Equivalents and Restricted Cash 

Cash and cash equivalents include funds on deposit with financial institutions, including demand deposits with financial institutions 
with original maturities of three months or less. The account balance may exceed the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (“FDIC”) 
insurance coverage limits and, as a result, there could be a concentration of credit risk related to amounts on deposit in excess of FDIC 
insurance coverage limits. The Company believes that the risk will not be significant, as the Company does not anticipate the financial 
institutions’ non-performance. 

Restricted cash represents cash the Company is required to hold in a segregated account as additional collateral on real estate securities 
repurchase agreements. As of June 30, 2021 and December 31, 2020, the Company had repaid all outstanding repurchase agreements 
secured by real estate securities and, therefore, no restricted cash was held. 

Accounting Pronouncements Recently Issued but Not Yet Effective

In June 2016, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued ASU 2016-13, “Financial Instruments – Credit Losses (Topic 
326): Measurement of Credit Losses on Financial Instruments” (“ASU 2016-13”), which changes how entities measure credit losses for 
financial assets carried at amortized cost. ASU 2016-13 eliminates the requirement that a credit loss must be probable before it can be 
recognized and instead requires an entity to recognize the current estimate of all expected credit losses. ASU 2016-13 is effective for 
SEC filers for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2019. In November 2019, the FASB issued ASU 2019-10, “Financial 
Instruments – Credit Losses (Topic 326), Derivatives and Hedging (Topic 815), and Leases (Topic 842): Effective Dates”, which grants 
smaller reporting companies (as defined by the SEC) until reporting periods commencing after December 15, 2022 to implement ASU 
2016-13. As a smaller reporting company, the Company will continue to evaluate the future impact ASU 2016-13, once implemented, 
will have on its allowance for loan losses estimate.
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Note 3 – Commercial Mortgage Loans Held for Investment 

The tables below show the Company’s commercial mortgage loans held for investment as of June 30, 2021 and December 31, 2020: 

June 30, 2021

Loan Type (1)  
Number
of Loans   

Principal
Balance   

Unamortized 
(fees)/costs, net   

Carrying
Value   

Weighted Average
Interest Rate   

Weighted Average
Years to Maturity  

First mortgage loans   33   $ 538,295  $ 842  $ 539,137   5.1%  1.5 
Credit loans   3    16,500   —   16,500   9.5%  4.4 
Total and average   36   $ 554,795  $ 842  $ 555,637   5.2%   1.5  

December 31, 2020

Loan Type (1)  
Number
of Loans   

Principal
Balance   

Unamortized 
(fees)/costs, net   

Carrying
Value   

Weighted Average
Interest Rate   

Weighted Average
Years to Maturity  

First mortgage loans   26   $ 425,196  $ 118  $ 425,314   5.3%  1.5 
Credit loans   3    16,500   —   16,500   9.5%  4.9 
Total and average   29   $ 441,696  $ 118  $ 441,814   5.5%   1.6  

(1) First mortgage loans are first position mortgage loans and credit loans are mezzanine and subordinated loans.

For the six months ended June 30, 2021 and the year ended December 31, 2020, the activity in the Company’s commercial mortgage 
loans, held-for-investment portfolio was as follows:

  Six Months Ended June 30, 2021   Year Ended December 31, 2020  

Balance at Beginning of Year  $ 441,814  $ 504,702 
Loan originations   137,951   69,135 
Principal repayments   (24,852)   (99,727)
Amortization of loan origination, loan extension and 
deferred exit fees   870   1,818 
Sale of commercial loan   —   (10,000)
Origination fees and extension fees received on 
commercial loans   (146)   — 
Provision for loan losses   —   (4,726)
Deferred interest capitalized on commercial loan   —   386 
Transfer on deed-in-lieu of foreclosure to real estate 
owned   —   (19,774)
Balance at End of Period  $ 555,637  $ 441,814  

Allowance for Loan Losses

The following table presents the activity in the Company’s allowance for loan losses:

  Six Months Ended June 30, 2021   Six Months Ended June 30, 2020  

Beginning of period  $ —  $ — 
Provision for loan losses   —   (5,765)
Charge-offs   —   — 
Ending allowance for loan losses  $ —  $ (5,765)

During the six-month period ended June 30, 2021, the Company determined that no loan losses were probable and, therefore, did not 
record an allowance for loan losses. In accordance with the Company’s allowance for loan loss policy, during the six-month period 
ended June 30, 2020, the Company recorded impairment charges of $4,265 on one first mortgage loan secured by a hotel property in 
Illinois and $1,500 on a credit loan secured by a hotel property located in Florida. The impairment charges were based on the estimated 
fair value of the underlying collateral. As of June 30, 2020, the recorded investments in these loans were $20,374 ($24,639, net of a 
$4,265 allowance for loan loss) and $1,500 ($3,000, net of a $1,500 allowance for loan loss), respectively. For the three and six months 
ended June 30, 2020, interest income for the impaired loans was $71 and $606, respectively. For further information on the Company’s 
allowance for loan losses policy, see “Note 2 – Summary of Significant Accounting Policies” in its Annual Report.
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Credit Characteristics

As part of the Company’s process for monitoring the credit quality of its investments, it performs a quarterly asset review of the 
investment portfolio and assigns risk ratings to each of its loans and CMBS. Risk factors include payment status, lien position, borrower 
financial resources and investment in collateral, collateral type, project economics and geographic location, as well as national and 
regional economic factors. To determine the likelihood of loss, the loans are rated on a 5-point scale as follows: 

Investment
Grade Investment Grade Definition

1 Investment exceeding fundamental performance expectations and/or capital gain expected. Trends and risk factors 
since time of investment are favorable.

2 Performing consistent with expectations and a full return of principal and interest expected. Trends and risk factors are 
neutral to favorable.

3 Performing investment requiring closer monitoring. Trends and risk factors show some deterioration. Collection of 
principal and interest is still expected.

4 Underperforming investment with the potential of some interest loss but still expecting a positive return on investment. 
Trends and risk factors are negative.

5 Underperforming investment with expected loss of interest and some principal.

All investments are assigned an initial risk rating of 2 at origination or acquisition. 

As of June 30, 2021, 28 loans had a risk rating of 2, six had a risk rating of 3 and two had a risk rating of 4. As of December 31, 2020, 
19 loans had a risk rating of 2, seven had a risk rating of 3 and three had a risk rating of 4. There were no loans with a risk rating of 1 or 
5 as of June 30, 2021 or December 31, 2020.

Loan Modifications

During April 2020, the Company agreed to modify one first mortgage loan on a hospitality property providing for a two-month partial 
reduction in the required monthly interest payment with payment of the amount by which the interest payments were reduced deferred 
to the two-month period beginning in October 2020. Prior to the COVID-19 pandemic, the loan was current on all required payments. 
The loan has continued to perform after the modification, and the underlying hospitality property has seen improvement in operating 
metrics due to increasing travel demand. The Company continues to monitor the loan, but does not believe a loss is probable and, as 
such, has not recorded any provision for loan losses related to the loan.

Note 4 – Real Estate Securities 

The Company classified its real estate securities as available-for-sale as of June 30, 2020. These investments were reported at fair value 
in the consolidated balance sheets with changes in fair value recorded in other income or loss in the consolidated statements of 
operations. The Company did not hold any real estate securities at June 30, 2021 or December 31, 2020.

During the six months ended June 30, 2020, the Company held real estate securities that generated unrealized losses in value of $19,113, 
primarily attributed to the significant economic impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on the economy. During the three and six months 
ended June 30, 2020, the Company sold real estate securities for $43,928 that resulted in realized losses of $19,288.

Note 5 – Repurchase Agreements and Credit Facilities

Commercial Mortgage Loans

On February 15, 2018, the Company, through a wholly owned subsidiary, entered into a master repurchase agreement (the “CF Repo 
Facility”) with Column Financial, Inc. as administrative agent for certain of its affiliates. The CF Repo Facility had an initial advance 
amount of $100,000 subject to a maximum advance amount of $250,000. The Company increased the advance amount in August 2018 
to $175,000, and in January 2019 to $250,000. In March 2020, the Company temporarily increased the maximum advance amount to 
$300,000, and this increase expired on June 30, 2020 and the maximum advance amount reverted to $250,000. The initial term of the 
CF Repo Facility was 12 months and the Company extended the maturity date in March 2020 to February 2021. During December 2020, 
the maturity date was further extended to December 2021. Advances under the CF Repo Facility for loans made before December 18, 
2020 accrue interest at a per annum rate equal to the London Interbank Offered Rate (“LIBOR”) plus 2.25% with a 0.75% floor. Loans 
made on or after December 18, 2020 accrue interest at a per annum annual rate equal to LIBOR plus 2.25% to 2.75% with a 0.25% to 
0.75% floor. The CF Repo Facility is subject to certain financial covenants. The Company was in compliance with all financial covenant 
requirements as of June 30, 2021 and December 31, 2020.
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On May 6, 2019, the Company, through a wholly owned subsidiary, entered into an uncommitted master repurchase agreement (the 
“JPM Repo Facility”) with JPMorgan Chase Bank, National Association. The JPM Repo Facility provides up to $150,000 in advances 
that the Company expects to use to finance the acquisition or origination of eligible loans and participation interests therein. Advances 
under the JPM Repo Facility accrue interest at per annum rates equal to the sum of (i) the applicable LIBOR index rate plus (ii) a margin 
of between 1.75% to 2.50%, depending on the attributes of the purchased assets. The maturity date of the JPM Repo Facility is May 6, 
2022, with a one-year extension at the Company’s option, which may be exercised upon the satisfaction of certain conditions. The JPM 
Repo Facility is subject to certain financial covenants. The Company was in compliance with all financial covenant requirements as of 
June 30, 2021 and December 31, 2020.

On March 10, 2021, the Company, through a wholly owned subsidiary, entered into a loan and security agreement and a promissory 
note (collectively the “WA Credit Facility”) with Western Alliance Bank, an Arizona corporation (“Western Alliance”). The WA Credit 
Facility provides for loan advances up to the lesser of $75,000 or the borrowing base. The borrowing base consists of eligible assets 
pledged to and accepted by Western Alliance in its discretion up to the lower of (i) 60% to 70% of loan-to-unpaid balance or (ii) 45% 
to 50% of the loan-to-appraised value (depending on the property type underlying the asset, for both (i) and (ii)). Assets that would 
otherwise be eligible become ineligible after being pledged as part of the borrowing base for 36 months. Advances under the WA Credit 
Facility accrue interest at an annual rate equal to one-month LIBOR plus 3.25% with a floor of 4.0%. The initial maturity date of the 
WA Credit Facility is March 10, 2023. The Company has an option to convert the loan made pursuant to the WA Credit Facility upon 
its initial maturity to a term loan with the same interest rate and floor and a maturity of two years in exchange for, among other things, 
a conversion fee of 0.25% of the outstanding amount at the time of conversion. The WA Credit Facility requires maintenance of an 
average unrestricted aggregate deposit account balance with Western Alliance of not less than $3,750. Failure to meet the minimum 
deposit balance will result in, among other things, the interest rate of the WA Credit Facility increasing by 0.25% per annum for each 
quarter in which the compensating balances are not maintained. The Company was in compliance with all financial covenant 
requirements as of June 30, 2021.

The JPM Repo Facility, CF Repo Facility and WA Credit Facility (collectively, the “Facilities”) are used to finance eligible loans and 
each act in the manner of a revolving credit facility that can be repaid as the Company’s assets are paid off and re-drawn as advances 
against new assets.
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The tables below show the Facilities as of June 30, 2021 and December 31, 2020:

June 30, 2021                 Weighted Average  

 
Committed 
Financing   

Amount
Outstanding(1)   

Accrued
Interest
Payable   

Collateral
Pledged   

Interest
Rate   

Days to
Maturity  

CF Repo Facility $ 250,000  $ 231,923  $ 230  $ 324,147   2.75%  171 
JPM Repo Facility  150,000   139,970   100   193,648   1.98%  310 
Repurchase agreements - 
commercial mortgage 
loans  400,000   371,893   330   517,795   2.46%  223 
WA Credit Facility  75,000   14,350   21   20,500   4.00%  618 
 $ 475,000  $ 386,243  $ 351  $ 538,295   2.52%  238  

December 31, 2020                 Weighted Average  

 
Committed 
Financing   

Amount
Outstanding(1)   

Accrued
Interest
Payable   

Collateral
Pledged   

Interest
Rate   

Days to
Maturity  

                        
CF Repo Facility $ 250,000  $ 159,948  $ 187  $ 228,359   3.00%  352 
JPM Repo Facility  150,000   130,778   105   190,047   2.08%  126 
 $ 400,000  $ 290,726  $ 292  $ 418,406   2.58%  250  

(1) Excludes $45 and $27 of unamortized debt issuance costs at June 30, 2021 and December 31, 2020, respectively.

Note 6 – Stockholders’ Equity 

The following tables detail the change in the Company’s outstanding shares of all classes of common stock, including restricted common 
stock:

  Common Stock  
Six months ended June 30, 2021  Class P   Class A   Class T   Class S   Class D   Class I  
Beginning balance   10,151,787   655,835   398,233   —   50,393   381,955 
Issuance of shares   —   —   —   —   —   64 
Distribution reinvestment   —   5,049   2,541   —   780   4,491 
Issuance of restricted shares   —   —   —   —   —   — 
Redemptions   (8,986)   —   —   —   —   — 
Ending balance   10,142,801   660,884   400,774   —   51,173   386,510 

                         
  Common Stock  
Six months ended June 30, 2020  Class P   Class A   Class T   Class S   Class D   Class I  
Beginning balance   10,182,305   272,006   121,718   —   41,538   100,743 
Issuance of shares   —   379,250   274,570   —   8,066   276,250 
Distribution reinvestment   —   2,310   963   —   477   1,309 
Issuance of restricted shares   —   —   —   —   —   — 
Redemptions   (30,518)   —   —   —   —   — 
Ending balance   10,151,787   653,566   397,251   —   50,081   378,302  

Distributions

Distributions declared for January and February of 2020 on Class P shares were based on monthly record dates, payable in arrears the 
following month equal to a monthly amount of 1/12th of $1.92 per share. Distributions declared for January and February of 2020 on 
shares of Class A, Class T, Class D and Class I common stock were based on monthly record dates, payable in arrears the following 
month equal to a monthly amount of 1/12th of $1.62 per share. Gross distributions are reduced for certain classes of our common stock 
for applicable class-specific expenses to arrive at the net distribution amount for those classes.



13

On March 24, 2020, the Board suspended the payment of distributions to the Company’s stockholders. In determining to suspend the 
payment of distributions, the Board considered various factors, including the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on the economy, the 
inability to accurately calculate the Company’s NAV per share due to uncertainty, volatility and lack of liquidity in the market, the 
Company’s need for liquidity due to financing challenges related to additional collateral required by the banks that regularly finance the 
Company’s assets and these uncertain and rapidly changing economic conditions. 

Though the Company did not calculate the NAV for the months of March through May 2020, the Advisor resumed calculating the NAV 
beginning as of June 30, 2020 following its determination that there has been reduced volatility in the market for the Company’s 
investments and some improvement in the U.S. economic outlook. In August 2020, the Company resumed paying distributions monthly 
to stockholders of record for all classes of shares. Please refer to “Note 15 – Subsequent Events” for updates on the Company’s business 
after June 30, 2021. The table below presents the aggregate annualized and monthly distributions declared by record date for all classes 
of shares since the Company resumed paying distributions.

Record date  

Aggregate annualized 
gross distribution 
declared per share   

Aggregate monthly 
gross distribution 
declared per share  

July 31, 2020  $ 0.8576  $ 0.0715 
August 31, 2020  $ 0.8800  $ 0.0733 
September 30, 2020  $ 0.9000  $ 0.0750 
October 31, 2020  $ 0.9000  $ 0.0750 
November 30, 2020  $ 0.9000  $ 0.0750 
December 31, 2020  $ 0.9000  $ 0.0750 
January 31, 2021  $ 0.9500  $ 0.0792 
February 28, 2021  $ 1.0000  $ 0.0833 
March 31, 2021  $ 1.0500  $ 0.0875 
April 30, 2021  $ 1.1000  $ 0.0917 
May 31, 2021  $ 1.1500  $ 0.0958 
June 30, 2021  $ 1.2500  $ 0.1042  

The table below presents the aggregate and net distributions declared for each applicable class of common stock during the six months 
ended June 30, 2021 and 2020. The table excludes distributions declared for any month for a class of shares of stock when there were 
no outstanding shares of that class on the record date corresponding to that distribution.

  Common Stock  
Six months ended June 30, 2021  Class P   Class A   Class T   Class S   Class D   Class I  
Aggregate gross distributions declared per share  $ 0.5417  $ 0.5417  $ 0.5417  $ —  $ 0.5417  $ 0.5417 
Stockholder servicing fee per share  N/A  N/A   0.0852   —   0.0251  N/A 
Net distributions declared per share  $ 0.5417  $ 0.5417  $ 0.4565  $ —  $ 0.5166  $ 0.5417 

                         
  Common Stock  
Six months ended June 30, 2020  Class P   Class A   Class T   Class S   Class D   Class I  
Aggregate gross distributions declared per share  $ 0.3200  $ 0.2700  $ 0.2700  $ —  $ 0.2700  $ 0.2700 
Stockholder servicing fee per share  N/A  N/A   0.0349   —   0.0103  N/A 
Net distributions declared per share  $ 0.3200  $ 0.2700  $ 0.2351  $ —  $ 0.2597  $ 0.2700  

As of June 30, 2021, and December 31, 2020, distributions declared but not yet paid amounted to $1,207 and $867, respectively.

Note 7 – Net Income (Loss) Per Share 

Basic earnings per share (“EPS”) are computed by dividing net income by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding 
for the period. Diluted EPS is computed by dividing net income by the common shares plus common share equivalents. The Company’s 
common share equivalents are unvested restricted shares. The Company excludes antidilutive restricted shares from the calculation of 
weighted-average shares for diluted earnings per share. There were zero and 68 antidilutive restricted shares for the three and six months 
ended June 30, 2021. There were zero and 214 antidilutive restricted shares for the three and six months ended June 30, 2020. For further 
information about the Company’s restricted shares, see “Note 11 – Equity-Based Compensation.”
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The following table is a summary of the basic and diluted net (loss) income per share computation for the three and six-months ended 
June 30, 2021 and 2020: 

  Three months ended June 30,   Six months ended June 30,  
  2021   2020   2021   2020  

Net income (loss)  $ 3,298  $ 1,006  $ 4,663  $ (36,852)
Weighted average shares outstanding, basic   11,640,258   11,630,987   11,640,606   11,490,217 
Dilutive effect of restricted stock   262   317   101   — 
Weighted average shares outstanding, diluted   11,640,520   11,631,304   11,640,707   11,490,217 
Net income (loss) per share, basic and diluted  $ 0.28  $ 0.09  $ 0.40  $ (3.21)

Note 8 – Commitments and Contingencies 

In the ordinary course of business, the Company may become subject to litigation, claims and regulatory matters. The Company has no 
knowledge of material legal or regulatory proceedings pending or known to be contemplated against the Company at this time. 

The Company has made a commitment to advance additional funds under certain of its CRE loans if the borrower meets certain 
conditions. As of June 30, 2021, the Company had 28 of such loans with a total remaining future funding commitment of $72,805. As 
of December 31, 2020, the Company had 20 such loans with a total remaining future funding commitment of $50,940. The Company 
advances future funds if the borrower meets certain requirements as specified in the individual loan agreements.

Note 9 – Segment Reporting

The Company has one reportable segment as defined by GAAP for the six months ended June 30, 2021 and 2020.

Note 10 – Transactions with Related Parties 

As of June 30, 2021, the Advisor had invested $1,000 in the Company through the purchase of 40,040 Class P shares. The purchase 
price per Class P share for the Advisor’s investment was equal to $25.00, with no payment of selling commissions, dealer manager fees 
or organization and offering expenses. The Advisor has agreed pursuant to its subscription agreement that, for so long as it or its affiliate 
is serving as the Company’s advisor, (i) it will not sell or transfer at least 8,000 of the Class P shares that it has purchased, accounting 
for $200 of its investment, to an unaffiliated third party; (ii) it will not be eligible to submit a request for these 40,040 Class P shares 
pursuant to the SRP prior to the fifth anniversary of the date on which such Class P shares were purchased (November 2021); and 
(iii) repurchase requests made for these Class P shares will only be accepted (a) on the last business day of a calendar quarter, (b) after 
all repurchase requests from all other stockholders for such quarter have been accepted and (c) to the extent that such repurchases do 
not cause total repurchases in the quarter in which they are being repurchased to exceed that quarter’s repurchase cap. 

As of June 30, 2021, Sound Point Capital Management, LP (“Sound Point”), an affiliate of the Sub-Advisor, had invested $3,000 in the 
Company through the purchase of 120,000 Class P shares. The purchase price per Class P share for this investment was $25.00, with no 
payment of selling commissions, dealer manager fees or organization and offering expenses. Sound Point has agreed pursuant to its 
subscription agreement that, for so long as the Sub-Advisor or its affiliate is serving as the Company’s sub-advisor, (i) it will not be 
eligible to submit a request for the repurchase of these 120,000 Class P shares pursuant to the SRP prior to the fifth anniversary of the 
date on which such Class P shares were purchased (November 2021); and (ii) repurchase requests made for these Class P shares will 
only be accepted (a) on the last business day of a calendar quarter, (b) after all repurchase requests from all other stockholders for such 
quarter have been accepted and (c) to the extent that such repurchases do not cause total repurchases in the quarter in which they are 
being repurchased to exceed that quarter’s repurchase cap. 
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The following table summarizes the Company’s related party transactions for the three and six-months ended June 30, 2021 and 2020 
and the amount due to related parties at June 30, 2021 and December 31, 2020:

  
Three months ended

June 30,   
Six months ended

June 30,   
Payable as of

June 30,   Payable as of
December 31,  

  2021   2020   2021   2020   2021   2020  

Organization and offering expense 
reimbursement(1)  $ —  $ 10  $ —  $ 70  $ —  $ — 
Selling commissions and dealer 
manager fee(2)   —   —   —   758   —   — 
Advisory fee(3)   737   1,557   1,474   2,401   247   507 
Loan fees(4)   1,641   299   2,199   1,093   1,496   912 
Accrued stockholder servicing fee(5)   —   —   —   446   639   674 
Operating expense reimbursement to 
advisor(6)   —   —   15   —   —   — 
Total  $ 2,378  $ 1,866  $ 3,688  $ 4,768  $ 2,382  $ 2,093  

(1) The Company reimbursed the Advisor, the Sub-Advisor and their respective affiliates for costs and other expenses related to the 
Private Offering, provided that aggregate reimbursements of such costs and expenses did not exceed the organization and offering 
expenses paid by investors in connection with the sale of Class P shares in the Private Offering. The Company reimburses the 
Advisor, the Sub-Advisor and their respective affiliates for costs and other expenses related to the IPO, provided the Advisor has 
agreed to reimburse the Company to the extent that the organization and offering expenses that the Company incurs exceeds 15% 
of its gross proceeds from the IPO. For the Private Offering, offering costs were offset against stockholders’ equity when paid. 
For the IPO, offering costs are offset against stockholders’ equity when incurred.

(2) The Dealer Manager received selling commissions up to 5%, and a dealer manager fee up to 3%, of the transaction price for each 
Class P share sold in the Private Offering, the majority of which was paid to third-party broker-dealers. For the IPO, the Dealer 
Manager is entitled to receive (a) upfront selling commissions of up to 6.0%, and upfront dealer manager fees of up to 1.25%, of 
the transaction price of each Class A share sold in the primary offering, however such amounts may vary at certain participating 
broker-dealers provided that the sum will not exceed 7.25% of the transaction price; (b) upfront selling commissions of up to 
3.0%, and upfront dealer manager fees of 0.5%, of the transaction price of each Class T share sold in the primary offering, however 
such amounts may vary at certain participating broker-dealers provided that the sum will not exceed 3.5% of the transaction price; 
and (c) upfront selling commissions of up to 3.5% of the transaction price of each Class S share sold in the primary offering. No 
upfront selling commissions or dealer manager fees are paid with respect to purchases of Class D shares, Class I shares or shares 
of any class sold pursuant to the DRP. 

(3) Pursuant to the Advisory Agreement, (1) the fixed component of the advisory fee is paid in an amount equal to 1/12th of 1.25% 
per annum of the gross value of the Company’s assets, paid monthly in arrears, provided that any such monthly payment shall not 
exceed 1/12th of 2.5% of the Company’s NAV; and (2) the performance component of the advisory fee is calculated and paid 
annually, such that for any year in which the Company’s total return per share exceeds 7% per annum, the Advisor will receive 
20% of the excess total return allocable to shares of the Company’s common stock; provided that in no event will the performance 
fee exceed 15% of the aggregate total return allocable to shares of the Company’s common stock for such year. For the six months 
ended June 30, 2021, the Advisor waived $1,475 of the fixed component of the advisory fees.  

(4) Pursuant to the Advisory Agreement, the Company pays the Advisor all loan origination and administrative fees related to CRE 
loans held for investment, to the extent that such fees are paid by the borrower. 

(5) Subject to the Financial Industry Regulatory Authority, Inc. limitations on underwriting compensation, the Company pays the 
Dealer Manager selling commissions over time as stockholder servicing fees for ongoing services rendered to stockholders by 
participating broker-dealers or broker-dealers servicing stockholders’ accounts as follows: (a) for Class T shares only, 0.85% per 
annum of the NAV of the Class T shares; (b) for Class S shares only, 0.85% per annum of the aggregate NAV for the Class S 
shares; and (c) for Class D shares only, 0.25% per annum of the aggregate NAV for the Class D shares. The Company will cease 
paying the stockholder servicing fee with respect to any Class T share, Class S share or Class D share held in a stockholder’s 
account upon the occurrence of certain events. The Company accrues the full cost of the stockholder servicing fee as an offering 
cost at the time the Company sells Class T, Class S, and Class D shares. The Dealer Manager does not retain any of these fees, all 
of which are retained by, or reallowed (paid) to, participating broker-dealers and servicing broker-dealers for ongoing stockholder 
services performed by such broker-dealers.

(6) The Company reimburses the Advisor for expenses that it (or the Sub-Advisor acting on the Advisor’s behalf) incurs in connection 
with providing services to the Company, provided that the Company does not reimburse overhead costs, including rent and utilities 
or personnel costs (including salaries, bonuses, benefits and severance payments) and the Company will only reimburse the 
Advisor for fees payable to its affiliates if they are incurred for legal or marketing services rendered on the Company’s behalf. 
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Note 11 – Equity-Based Compensation 

On December 1, 2020, the Company granted each of its three independent directors 464 restricted Class I shares for a total of 1,393 
Class I shares with a grant date fair value of $21.54 per share and a total combined fair value of $30. The restricted Class I shares will 
vest in equal one-third increments on December 1, 2021, 2022 and 2023. On December 2, 2019, the Company granted each of its three 
independent directors 399 restricted Class I shares for a total of 1,197 Class I shares with a grant date fair value of $25.07 per share and 
a total combined fair value of $30. The restricted Class I shares vest in equal one-third increments on December 2, 2020, 2021 and 2022. 
On January 7, 2019, the Company granted 400 restricted Class P shares to each of its three independent directors for a total of 1,200 
Class P shares with a grant date fair value of $25.00 per share and a total combined fair value of $30. These restricted Class P shares 
vest in equal one-third increments on January 7, 2020, 2021 and 2022. On March 1, 2018, the Company granted 400 restricted Class P 
shares to each of its three independent directors for a total of 1,200 Class P shares with a grant date fair value of $25.00 per share and a 
total combined fair value of $30. These restricted Class P shares vest in equal one-third increments on March 1, 2019, 2020 and 2021. 

Under the Company’s Independent Director Restricted Share Plan, restricted shares generally vest over a three-year vesting period from 
the date of the grant, subject to the specific terms of the grant. Restricted shares are included in common stock outstanding on the grant 
date. The grant-date value of the restricted shares is amortized over the vesting period representing the requisite service period. 
Compensation expense associated with the restricted shares issued to the independent directors was $7 and $17, in the aggregate, for the 
three and six months ended June 30, 2021. Compensation expense associated with the restricted shares issued to the independent 
directors was $8 and $16, in the aggregate, for the three and six months ended June 30, 2020. As of June 30, 2021, the Company had 
$43 of unrecognized compensation expense related to the unvested restricted shares, in the aggregate. The weighted average remaining 
period that compensation expense related to unvested restricted shares will be recognized is 1.13 years. The total fair value at the vesting 
date for restricted shares that vested during the six months ended June 30, 2021 and 2020 was $16 and $17, respectively. There were no 
restricted shares that vested during the three months ended June 30, 2021 and 2020.

A summary table of the status of the restricted shares is presented below:

  Restricted Shares   

Weighted
Average

Grant Date
Fair Value Per Share  

Outstanding at December 31, 2020   3,391  $ 23.59 
Granted   —   — 
Vested   (800)   25.00 
Converted   —   — 
Forfeited   —   — 
Outstanding at June 30, 2021   2,591  $ 23.16  
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Note 12 – Fair Value of Financial Instruments

GAAP requires the disclosure of fair value information about financial instruments, whether or not they are recognized at fair value in 
the consolidated balance sheets, for which it is practicable to estimate that value. The following table details the carrying amount and 
estimated fair value of the Company’s financial instruments at the dates below:

 June 30, 2021   December 31, 2020  

 
Carrying
Amount   

Estimated Fair
Value   

Carrying
Amount   

Estimated Fair
Value  

Financial assets                
Cash and cash equivalents $ 51,943  $ 51,943  $ 72,107  $ 72,107 
Commercial mortgage loans, net  555,637   556,903   441,814   441,267 

Total $ 607,580  $ 608,846  $ 513,921  $ 513,374 

Financial liabilities                
Repurchase agreements - commercial mortgage
   loans $ 371,848  $ 371,848  $ 290,699  $ 290,699 
Credit facility payable  14,350   14,350   —   — 

Total $ 386,198  $ 386,198  $ 290,699  $ 290,699  

The following describes the Company’s methods for estimating the fair value for financial instruments:

• The estimated fair value of cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash was based on the bank balance and was a Level 1 fair 
value measurement.

• The estimated fair value of commercial mortgage loans, net is a Level 3 fair value measurement. The Sub-Advisor estimates the 
fair values of commercial loans by analyzing interest rate spreads on loans based on various factors including capitalization rates, 
occupancy rates, sponsorship, geographic concentration, collateral type, market conditions and actions of other lenders.

• The estimated fair values of the repurchase agreements – commercial mortgage loans and the credit facility payable are Level 3 fair 
value measurements based on expected present value techniques. This method discounts future estimated cash flows using rates the 
Company determined best reflect current market interest rates that would be offered for repurchase agreements and credit facilities 
with similar characteristics and credit quality.

Note 13 – Real Estate Owned

The following table summarizes the Company’s real estate owned assets as of June 30, 2021:

Acquisition Date  
Property 

Type  
Primary 

Location(s)  
Building and 

Improvements   

Furniture, 
Fixtures and 
Equipment   

Accumulated 
Depreciation   

Real Estate 
Owned, Net  

August 2020 (1)(2)   Hotel   Chicago, IL  $ 26,683  $ 6,234  $ (949)  $ 31,968  

(1) Refer to “Note 2 – Summary of Significant Accounting Policies” in the Annual Report for useful life of the above assets.

(2) Represents assets acquired by the Company by completing a deed-in-lieu of foreclosure transaction.

During February 2021, the Company received a loan under the Paycheck Protection Program (“PPP”) related to the operations of the 
Company’s 362-room hotel located in Chicago, Illinois known as the Renaissance Chicago O’Hare Suites Hotel (the “Renaissance 
O’Hare”). This five-year loan was for $1,093 with a fixed interest rate of 1.00% that does not compound. The PPP was created as part 
of the Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security Act (“CARES Act”). To be eligible to receive a loan, companies must make a 
number of certifications related to its operations, employees and size of the business on an application. Companies may also subsequently 
apply for loan forgiveness under the program provided that it meets requirements limiting any reduction in workforce or in pay. 

The Company intends to qualify and apply for loan forgiveness and as such is accounting for this PPP loan using a government grant 
accounting approach. The grant proceeds are initially recorded in accrued expenses on the consolidated balance sheet. Each month, 
those proceeds are applied as a reduction to payroll-related costs within real estate owned operating expenses on the consolidated 
statement of operations until the proceeds have been fully absorbed by the payroll-related expenses. As of June 30, 2021, no balance 
remains recorded in accrued expenses for the PPP loan to be absorbed by payroll-related expenses.
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Note 14 – Leases

The Company is the lessee under one ground lease. The ground lease, which commenced on April 1, 1999, was assumed as part of the 
Renaissance O’Hare acquired through a deed-in-lieu of foreclosure transaction on August 20, 2020 and extends through March 31, 2098. 
The lease is classified as a finance lease. Under the ground lease, the Company is prohibited from mortgaging the land but is not 
prohibited from making a leasehold mortgage for property constructed on the land. The Company may terminate the lease as of March 
31, 2049, March 31, 2065 and March 31, 2081 provided that twelve months’ notice is provided to the lessor prior to those respective 
dates. 

Upon assumption of the lease, the Company recorded a lease liability of $16,827 and a right-of-use asset of $5,549 on its consolidated 
balance sheet. The lease liability was based on the present value of the ground lease’s future payments using an interest rate of 11.37%, 
which the Company considers reasonable and within the range of the Company’s incremental borrowing rate. For the three and six 
months ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, total finance lease cost was comprised as follows:

  
Three months ended

June 30,   
Six months ended

June 30,  

  2021   2020   2021   2020  

Amortization of right-of-use assets  $ 18  $ —  $ 36  $ — 
Interest on lease liabilities   480   —   958   — 
Total finance lease cost  $ 498  $ —  $ 994  $ —  

The table below shows the Company’s finance lease right of use asset, net of amortization as of June 30, 2021 and December 31, 2020:

  June 30,   December 31,  
  2021   2020  

Finance lease right of use asset, gross  $ 5,549  $ 5,549 
Accumulated amortization   (60)   (24)
Finance lease right of use asset, net of amortization  $ 5,489  $ 5,525  

Remaining lease payments for the ground lease as of June 30, 2021 for each of the five succeeding years and thereafter is as follows:

  Lease Payments  

2021 (remaining)  $ 806 
2022   1,611 
2023   1,611 
2024   1,745 
2025   1,772 
Thereafter   271,457 
Total undiscounted lease payments  $ 279,002 

Less: Amount representing interest   (262,059)
Present value of lease liability  $ 16,943  

Note 15 – Subsequent Events

The Company has evaluated subsequent events through August 13, 2021, the date the financial statements were issued. The following 
are updates on the Company’s operations since June 30, 2021.

Second Amended and Restated Advisory Agreement

On July 1, 2021, the Company entered into a Second Amended and Restated Advisory Agreement (the “Second A&R Advisory 
Agreement”) with the Advisor, which supersedes and replaces the First Amended and Restated Advisory Agreement dated as of April 
29, 2019, between the Company, the Operating Partnership and the Advisor (the “Previous Advisory Agreement”).

The Second A&R Advisory Agreement modifies the management fee payable to the Advisor. Under the Previous Advisory Agreement, 
the monthly fixed management fee was equal to 1.25% per annum of the gross value of the Company’s assets, provided that any such 
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monthly payment would not exceed 1/12th of 2.5% of the Company’s NAV calculated pursuant to the Company’s valuation guidelines. 
Pursuant to the Second A&R Advisory Agreement, the monthly management fee has been changed to be equal to 1/12th of 1.25% of 
the average NAV for each month.

The Second A&R Advisory Agreement also modifies the Company’s obligation to reimburse the Advisor and Sub-Advisor for their 
expenses. Under the Second A&R Advisory Agreement and the Second A&R Sub-Advisory Agreement as defined and described below, 
the Company will reimburse the Advisor and Sub-Advisor and their respective affiliates for all of their expenses attributable to the 
Company or its subsidiaries, including the Operating Partnership, and paid or incurred by the Advisor, the Sub-Advisor or their 
respective affiliates in providing services and licenses under the Second A&R Advisory Agreement or the Second A&R Sub-Advisory 
Agreement; provided that the Company will not reimburse for certain overhead costs such as rent and utilities. Expense reimbursements 
will be subject to the limits contained in an Expense Limitation Agreement described below and are subject to the limitations on total 
operating expenses as set forth in the Company’s charter. The reimbursable expenses will now include personnel and related employment 
costs incurred by the Advisor, Sub-Advisor, or their affiliates in performing the services described in the Second A&R Advisory 
Agreement or the Second A&R Sub-Advisory Agreement, which were previously excluded from expenses reimbursed by the Company. 
These costs will include, but will not be limited to, reasonable salaries and wages, benefits and overhead of all employees directly 
involved in the performance of such services, provided that no reimbursement will be made for costs of such employees of the Advisor, 
Sub-Advisor or their affiliates to the extent that such employees serve as the Company’s executive officers.

Second Amended and Restated Sub-Advisory Agreement

On July 1, 2021, the Advisor entered into a Second Amended and Restated Sub-Advisory Agreement (the “Second A&R Sub-
Advisory Agreement”) with the Sub-Advisor, which supersedes and replaces the First Amended and Restated Sub-Advisory Agreement 
dated as of April 29, 2019, between the Advisor and the Sub-Advisor (“Previous Sub-Advisory Agreement”). The Second A&R Sub-
Advisory Agreement provides that the compensation and other expenses of all personnel of the Sub-Advisor, to the extent engaged in 
providing services and assistance pursuant to the Second A&R Sub-Advisory Agreement, will now be reimbursable in accordance with 
the Second A&R Advisory Agreement with the prior approval of the Advisor. Any expense reimbursements remain subject to the 
limitations on total operating expenses in the Company’s corporate charter as well as the limitations in the Expense Limitation 
Agreement described below.

Expense Limitation Agreement

The Company has entered into an Expense Limitation Agreement with its Advisor and the Sub-Advisor (the “Expense Limitation 
Agreement”), effective July 1, 2021, pursuant to which the Advisor and Sub-Advisor have agreed to waive reimbursement of or pay, on 
a quarterly basis, the Company’s annualized ordinary operating expenses for such quarter to the extent such expenses exceed 1.5% of 
the Company’s average monthly net assets attributable to each of the its classes of common stock. “Ordinary operating expenses” for 
each class of its common stock consist of all ordinary expenses attributable to such class, including administration fees, transfer agent 
fees, fees paid to its independent directors, loan servicing expenses, administrative services expenses, and related costs associated with 
legal, regulatory compliance and investor relations, but excluding the following: (a) advisory fees payable to the Advisor, (b) interest 
expense and other financing costs, (c) taxes, (d) distribution or stockholder servicing fees and (e) operating expenses for any real estate 
owned, including depreciation, and (f) unusual, unexpected and/or nonrecurring expenses. The Company will repay the Advisor or the 
Sub-Advisor on a quarterly basis any ordinary operating expenses previously waived or paid, but only if the reimbursement would not 
cause the then-current expense limitation, if any, to be exceeded. In addition, the reimbursement of expenses will be made only if payable 
not more than three years from the end of the fiscal quarter in which the expenses were paid or waived.

The Expense Limitation Agreement has a one-year term, subject to annual renewals by a majority of the Company’s independent 
directors and by the Advisor and the Sub-Advisor. The Expense Limitation Agreement may not be terminated by the Advisor or the 
Sub-Advisor, but may be terminated by the Company’s independent directors on written notice to the Advisor and the Sub-Advisor.

Revolving Credit Liquidity Letter Agreements

Inland Real Estate Investment Corporation (“IREIC”), the Company’s sponsor, and Sound Point have agreed under separate letter 
agreements dated July 20, 2021, and July 15, 2021, respectively, to make revolving credit loans to the Company in an aggregate principal 
amount outstanding at any one time not to exceed $5 million and $15 million, respectively (the “IREIC-Sound Point Commitments”) 
from time to time until the Termination Date (defined below) of the letter agreements. These letter agreements are identical to each other 
in all material respects other than the commitment amounts. Use of the IREIC-Sound Point Commitments is limited to satisfying 
requirements to maintain cash or cash equivalents under the Company’s repurchase and other borrowing arrangements. The 
“Termination Date” is the earliest of (i) the Maturity Date (defined below) (ii) the first date on which the Company’s balance sheet 
equity is equal to or greater than $500 million, (iii) the date IREIC or one of its affiliates is no longer the Company’s Advisor or Sound 
Point or one of its affiliates is no longer the Company’s Sub-Advisor and (iv) such earlier date on which the commitment will terminate 
as provided in the letter agreements, for example, because of an event of default. The “Maturity Date” is one year from the date of the 
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agreement, and the Maturity Date will be automatically extended every year for an additional year, unless (a) the lender delivers notice 
of termination 60 days prior to an anniversary of the letter agreements or (b) an Event of Default (defined below) has occurred and is 
continuing. Each revolving loan will bear interest at 6.00% per annum. Interest is payable in arrears when principal is paid or repaid and 
on the Termination Date. Each of the following constitutes an “Event of Default” under the letter agreements: (y) the Company fails to 
perform or observe any covenant or condition to be performed or observed under the letter agreement (including the obligation to repay 
a loan in full on the Termination Date) and such failure is not remedied within three business days of its receipt of notice thereof; or (z) 
the Company becomes insolvent or the subject of any bankruptcy proceeding.

Distributions

The Board has authorized distributions to stockholders of record as of July 31, 2021, payable on or about August 18, 2021 for each class 
of its common stock in the amount per share set forth below:

  Common Stock  
  Class P   Class A   Class T   Class S   Class D   Class I  
Aggregate gross distributions declared per 
share  $ 0.1042  $ 0.1042  $ 0.1042  $ —  $ 0.1042  $ 0.1042 
Stockholder servicing fee per share  N/A  N/A   0.0146   —   0.0043  N/A 
Net distributions declared per share  $ 0.1042  $ 0.1042  $ 0.0896  $ —  $ 0.0999  $ 0.1042  

Repurchases of Common Stock

On July 1, 2021, our SRP was reinstated for all stockholders, and the first settlement of permitted repurchase requests was on July 30, 
2021, the last business day of the month. In accordance with the terms of the SRP that allow us to repurchase fewer shares than the 
maximum amount permitted under the SRP, for the month of July, the Company repurchased an amount of shares equal to an aggregate 
purchase price of 1.7% of the aggregate NAV as of June 30, 2021.
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Item 2.  Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

Certain statements in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q constitute “forward-looking statements” within the meaning of Section 27A 
of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the “Securities Act”), and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended 
(the “Exchange Act”). Words such as “may,” “could,” “should,” “expect,” “intend,” “plan,” “goal,” “seek,” “anticipate,” 
“believe,” “estimate,” “predict,” “variables,” “potential,” “continue,” “expand,” “maintain,” “create,” “strategies,” “likely,” 
“will,” “would” and variations of these terms and similar expressions, or the negative of these terms or similar expressions, are intended 
to identify forward-looking statements.

These forward-looking statements are not historical facts but reflect the intent, belief or current expectations of the management of 
InPoint Commercial Real Estate Income, Inc. (which we refer to herein as the “Company,” “we,” “our” or “us”) based on their 
knowledge and understanding of the business and industry, the economy and other future conditions. These statements are not 
guarantees of future performance, and we caution stockholders not to place undue reliance on forward-looking statements. Actual 
results may differ materially from those expressed or forecasted in the forward-looking statements due to a variety of risks, uncertainties 
and other factors, including but not limited to the factors listed and described under “Risk Factors” in this Quarterly Report on Form 
10-Q, our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2021, as filed with the SEC on May 14, 2021 and in our 
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2020 (the “Annual Report”), as filed with the SEC on March 19, 2021, 
and the factors described below:

• Market disruptions caused by the economic effects of, or uncertainties surrounding the future effects of, the COVID-19 pandemic 
have adversely impacted aspects of our operating results and operating condition and may continue to do so, and these effects may 
become more severe, e.g., if COVID-19 vaccinations are not as effective as expected or for some other reason COVID-19 cases 
increase nationally or in markets that affect the value of our investments;

• We have paid past distributions from sources other than cash flows from operating activities and net income, including from offering 
proceeds, which reduces the amount of cash we ultimately have to invest in assets, and if we cannot generate sufficient cash flow 
from operations to fully fund distributions, some or all of our distributions may again be paid from these other sources;

• There is no current public trading market for our common stock, and we do not expect that such a market will ever develop. 
Therefore, repurchase of shares by us will likely be the only way for stockholders to dispose of their shares, and our SRP was 
suspended and may be suspended again in the future;

• Even if our stockholders are able to sell their shares pursuant to our SRP, or otherwise, they may not be able to recover the amount 
of their investment in our shares;

• Under our charter, we may borrow to 300% of our net assets, equivalent to 75% of the costs of our assets and may exceed this 
limitation with the approval of a majority of our independent directors;

• Our Advisor and our Sub-Advisor may face conflicts of interest in allocating personnel and resources between their affiliates;

• None of our agreements with our Advisor, our Sub-Advisor or any affiliates of our Advisor or Sub-Advisor were negotiated at 
arm’s-length, and although our Advisor has agreed to waive 50% of its monthly advisory fee, which will increase our income and 
the amount of cash that would otherwise be available to us, the Advisor may revoke this waiver in its discretion at any time and 
without any advance notice; 

• If we fail to continue to qualify as a REIT, our operations and distributions to stockholders will be adversely affected; and

• The COVID-19 pandemic has had a significant and adverse effect on the economy and our investments, particularly the Renaissance 
O’Hare and CRE debt investments backed by hospitality and retail properties, and its future impacts are uncertain and hard to 
measure but may cause a material adverse effect on our business and results of operations.

Forward-looking statements in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q reflect our management’s view only as of the date of this Quarterly 
Report on Form 10-Q and may ultimately prove to be incorrect or false. We undertake no obligation to update or revise forward-looking 
statements to reflect changed assumptions, the occurrence of unanticipated events or changes to future operating results except as 
required by applicable law. We intend for these forward-looking statements to be covered by the applicable safe harbor provisions 
created by Section 27A of the Securities Act and Section 21E of the Exchange Act. 

The following discussion and analysis relate to the three and six months ended June 30, 2021 and 2020 and as of June 30, 2021 and 
December 31, 2020. You should read the following discussion and analysis along with our unaudited consolidated financial statements 
and the related notes included in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q. 
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Unless otherwise stated, all dollar amounts are stated in thousands, except share data. 

Overview

We are a Maryland corporation formed on September 13, 2016 to originate, acquire and manage an investment portfolio of CRE 
investments primarily comprised of floating-rate CRE debt, including first mortgage loans, subordinate mortgage and mezzanine loans, 
and participations in such loans. We may also invest in floating-rate CRE securities such as CMBS and senior unsecured debt of publicly 
traded REITs, and select equity investments in single-tenant, net leased properties. Substantially all of our business is conducted through 
our Operating Partnership, of which we are the sole general partner. We are externally managed by our Advisor, an indirect subsidiary 
of Inland Real Estate Investment Corporation. Our Advisor has engaged the Sub-Advisor, a subsidiary of Sound Point CRE 
Management, LP, to perform certain services on behalf of the Advisor for us. 

We have operated in a manner that allows us to qualify as a REIT for U.S. federal income tax purposes commencing with the taxable 
year ending December 31, 2017. Among other requirements, REITs are required to distribute to stockholders at least 90% of their annual 
REIT taxable income (computed without regard to the dividends-paid deduction and excluding net capital gain). 

For a discussion of the history of the Company and its Private Offering and IPO, please see “Note 1 – Organization and Business 
Operations” in the notes to our consolidated financial statements above.

Recent Developments

We continue to evaluate the economic impact from the COVID-19 pandemic and the economic recovery. Since June 30, 2021 and 
through the filing of this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, all of our borrowers have made their scheduled loan payments and we have 
not identified any loans that have had conditions that would change the risk rating we assigned to those loans as of June 30, 2021. For 
further discussion of our risk ratings assigned to loans, please see “Note 3 – Commercial Mortgage Loans Held for Investment” in the 
notes to our consolidated financial statements above. We will continue to actively monitor our borrowers to address the impacts of the 
COVID-19 pandemic on their respective businesses. We continue to see significant demand and competition for new loans and are 
selectively executing term sheets with prospective borrowers.

Loans and Warehouse Financing

As of June 30, 2021, our loan portfolio, which was comprised of 36 loans with a current principal balance of $554.8 million, was 
diversified across property types. Our loan portfolio was comprised of approximately 9% loans backed by retail and hospitality 
properties, the two sectors affected most quickly and negatively by the COVID-19 pandemic. The hospitality and retail sectors continue 
to be impacted by reduced travel, social distancing and other requirements and recommendations resulting from the pandemic and efforts 
to control it. We have closely monitored the loans in our portfolio and have communicated with borrowers to ascertain their ability to 
collect rent from tenants and, therefore, the potential to fulfill their loan obligations. 

We continue to see good opportunities to originate loans backed by office, industrial and multifamily properties. During the three and 
six month periods ended June 30, 2021, we originated seven and nine loans, respectively and grew our CRE loan portfolio by $80.2 
million and $113.8 million, respectively.

We fund our first mortgage loan portfolio with our two master repurchase agreements and our credit facility. See “Note 5 – 
Repurchase Agreements and Credit Facilities” in the notes to our consolidated financial statements above. During the three and six 
month periods ended June 30, 2021, we increased our borrowings under our master repurchase agreement and credit facility 
financings by $80.3 and $95.5 million, respectively.

Real Property

We own a 362-room hotel located in Chicago, Illinois, the Renaissance O’Hare. More specifically, we own a ground lease interest in 
the Renaissance O’Hare and currently pay annual rent of approximately $1.6 million on a net basis, with us as the tenant responsible for 
all operating expenses, including property taxes. The lease has a 10% rental increase every five years with the next increase scheduled 
to occur in April 2023. This ground lease runs through March 2098.

The Renaissance O’Hare has been and continues to be negatively impacted by the COVID-19 pandemic. We have estimated a $1.8 
million expected loss during 2021 for the Renaissance O’Hare related to the continuing COVID-19 pandemic, and recognized a net loss 
from the hotel of approximately $1.5 million in the first half of 2021. Though vaccinations are continuing, there are numerous risks and 
uncertainties still surrounding the continuing effects of the pandemic, including whether and when a resumption of pre-pandemic levels 
of travel and in-person meetings and events might happen. Government and corporate restrictions on travel and in-person gatherings, 
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reduced demand for these activities from businesses and individuals, and the uncertainties surrounding the duration and effects of the 
pandemic persist.

Ultimately, we intend to sell the Renaissance O’Hare and remain focused on our core business of investing in CRE debt. Until we 
determine to sell the hotel, a third-party management company we have engaged will continue to manage it. To help facilitate operations 
while we monitor the course of the pandemic and market conditions, the hotel received a $1.1 million loan in the first quarter of 2021 
under the federal government’s PPP. Under the terms of the CARES Act, PPP loan recipients can apply for forgiveness for all or a 
portion of loans granted under the PPP. Such forgiveness will be determined, subject to limitations and ongoing rulemaking by the U.S. 
Small Business Administration, based in part on the use of loan proceeds for payroll costs and mortgage interest, rent or utility costs 
and the maintenance of employee and compensation levels. We have used the loan proceeds for these purposes, but there is no assurance 
that our PPP loan will be forgiven. The following table shows the Renaissance’s O’Hare’s performance trend over the past four quarters.

 

Period  
Average Occupancy Per 

Night   
Revenue Per Available 

Room   Average Daily Rate  

Third Quarter 2020   22% $ 19  $ 89 
Fourth Quarter 2020   16% $ 14  $ 85 
First Quarter 2021   28% $ 23  $ 80 
Second Quarter 2021   48% $ 43  $ 89  

Although occupancy and the hotel’s performance improved during the quarter ended June 30, 2021, balancing the potential increase in 
the price of a future sale against the potential for continued operating losses in the face of the uncertainty surrounding the pandemic is 
difficult. Whether we achieve a sale price that is worth waiting for will likely depend in large part on how the aforementioned 
uncertainties surrounding the pandemic and the return of leisure and business travel and in-person large group events unfolds, which 
could result in a favorable sale price or future operating losses even beyond what we are expecting or a loss on sale, any of which could 
be material to our future results of operations. We will monitor the market for hotel sales while considering, among other things, the 
performance of the Renaissance O’Hare, relevant market factors and our expected total return weighing current potential disposition 
prices and redeployment of the sales proceeds into our core investment strategy against the potential disposition prices expected later 
upon the stabilization of the performance of the hotel.

Cash and Unencumbered Assets 

As of June 30, 2021, we held cash of $51.9 million and $30.5 million of unencumbered assets that are free and clear of any lender 
claims. 

Significant Accounting Policies and Use of Estimates

Disclosures discussing all significant accounting policies are set forth in our Annual Report under the heading “Note 2 – Summary of 
Significant Accounting Policies.” There have been no additions to our significant accounting policies for the three and six months ended 
June 30, 2021. 

Portfolio

We began operations in October 2016 and our strategy is to originate, acquire and manage an investment portfolio of CRE debt that is 
primarily floating rate and diversified based on the type and location of collateral securing the underlying CRE debt. We anticipate our 
investment portfolio will be less diversified and have higher concentrations in asset class, collateral type and geographic location until our 
capital raise reaches levels that will allow for greater diversification. 

The charts below summarize our debt investments portfolio as a percentage of par value by type of rate, our total investment portfolio 
by investment type, including real estate owned (“REO”), and our loan portfolio by collateral type and geographical region as of June 30, 
2021 and December 31, 2020:
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Floating Vs. Fixed Rate Debt Investments:

June 30, 2021 December 31, 2020

                

All Investments by Type:

June 30, 2021 December 31, 2020
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Loans by Property Type:

June 30, 2021 December 31, 2020

     
               

Loans by Region:

June 30, 2021 December 31, 2020
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An investment’s region is defined according to the below map based on the location of property underlying loans in our portfolio.

The changes in our loan portfolio by property type and by region as of June 30, 2021 compared to December 31, 2020 were primarily 
due to new loans originated during the period. Due to the small number of investments in our portfolio, the changes in the portfolio 
composition may be significant from one period to another. We anticipate that these changes will become less significant as our portfolio 
increases in size.

Commercial Mortgage Loans Held for Investment

 
As of

June 30, 2021   
As of

December 31, 2020  
        

Principal balance of first mortgage loans $ 538,295  $ 425,196 
Number of first mortgage loans  33   26 
Principal balance of credit loans $ 16,500  $ 16,500 
Number of credit loans  3   3 
Total balance of loans $ 554,795  $ 441,696 
Total number of loans  36   29 
All-in yield (1)  5.2%   5.5%
Weighted average years to maximum maturity  3.2   3.4 
____________        

(1) All-in yield is the present value of all future principal and interest payments on the loan and does not include any origination fees 
or deferred commitment fees.

The increase in the size of our portfolio is due to increased leverage as we executed our business strategy and the redeployment of 
proceeds from the sale of real estate securities that were sold during the year ended December 31, 2020. The change in the all-in yield 
was not significant.



27

The table below presents information for each of our commercial mortgage loans as of June 30, 2021:

  
Origination

Date  
Loan

Type (1)  
Principal
Balance   

Cash 
Coupon (2)   

All-in
Yield 

(2)   
Maximum
Maturity (3)  State  

Property
Type  LTV (4)   

Risk
Rating 

(5)  
1  12/12/17  First mortgage  $ 14,650  L+4.70%   5.9%   1/9/23  HI  Office   67%   2 

2 (6)  12/13/17  First mortgage   16,860  L+4.50%   5.7%   7/9/21  VA  Office   55%   3 
3  3/22/18  First mortgage   12,059  L+3.75%   5.1%   4/9/23  CO  Retail   74%   2 
4  5/4/18  First mortgage   31,000  L+4.00%   5.5%   11/9/21  PA  Industrial   64%   2 

5 (7)  5/17/18  First mortgage   6,614  L+4.50%   6.2%   8/9/21  NC  Multifamily   54%   3 
6  9/7/18  First mortgage   24,411  L+3.75%   5.6%   9/9/23  TX  Office   73%   2 
7  10/30/18  First mortgage   6,860  L+3.85%   5.7%   11/9/23  TX  Multifamily   76%   2 
8  11/16/18  First mortgage   5,200  L+3.90%   5.9%   12/9/23  CA  Multifamily   64%   2 

9 (8)  12/20/18  First mortgage   16,324  L+4.20%   6.2%   6/9/25  AL  Hospitality   64%   4 
10  1/25/19  First mortgage   11,659  L+3.45%   5.4%   2/9/24  IL  Multifamily   78%   2 
11  5/29/19  First mortgage   24,000  L+3.25%   5.7%   6/9/24  TX  Multifamily   68%   2 
12  5/31/19  First mortgage   13,112  L+3.25%   5.6%   6/9/24  CA  Multifamily   70%   3 
13  6/18/19  First mortgage   47,746  L+2.75%   4.7%   7/9/24  TX  Office   72%   2 
14  6/18/19  First mortgage   6,350  L+3.60%   5.7%   7/9/24  CA  Mixed Use   54%   2 
15  8/15/19  First mortgage   7,567  L+4.20%   6.6%   9/9/24  TN  Office   45%   3 
16  9/27/19  First mortgage   15,441  L+3.10%   4.6%   10/9/24  CA  Office   75%   2 
17  9/30/19  First mortgage   30,000  L+3.30%   5.0%   10/9/24  TX  Multifamily   77%   2 
18  10/4/19  First mortgage   20,958  L+2.90%   4.6%   10/9/24  NC  Office   61%   3 
19  10/30/19  First mortgage   13,743  L+3.00%   4.9%   11/9/24  CA  Multifamily   80%   2 
20  11/22/19  First mortgage   32,965  L+3.00%   4.9%   12/9/24  AZ  Multifamily   80%   2 
21  2/6/20  First mortgage   19,835  L+3.30%   4.9%   2/9/25  NJ  Office   69%   2 
22  2/20/20  First mortgage   8,313  L+3.85%   5.4%   3/9/25  CA  Retail   57%   2 
23  2/28/20  First mortgage   9,320  L+3.50%   5.0%   3/9/25  FL  Retail   78%   2 
24  10/13/20  First mortgage   7,096  L+4.00%   4.9%   10/9/25  CA  Multifamily   70%   2 
25  3/5/21  First mortgage   13,000  L+5.00%   5.5%   3/9/26  VA  Office   57%   2 
26  3/12/21  First mortgage   19,573  L+4.00%   4.2%   3/6/26  MS  Industrial   64%   2 
27  4/6/21  First mortgage   11,672  L+3.50%   3.7%   4/9/26  AL  Multifamily   69%   2 
28  4/6/21  First mortgage   9,223  L+3.50%   3.7%   4/9/26  AL  Multifamily   78%   2 
29  4/15/21  First mortgage   9,090  L+4.00%   4.2%   5/9/26  NJ  Industrial   69%   2 
30  5/12/21  First mortgage   27,074  L+3.15%   3.3%   5/9/26  CT  Multifamily   77%   2 
31  5/25/21  First mortgage   11,200  L+3.20%   3.4%   6/9/26  TN  Multifamily   80%   2 
32  5/26/21  First mortgage   14,880  L+3.10%   3.3%   6/9/26  NV  Multifamily   80%   2 
33  6/8/21  First mortgage   20,500  L+8.00%   8.2%   12/9/23  TX  Mixed Use   45%   2 
34  9/29/17  Credit   7,500  9.20%   9.2%   10/11/27  NJ  Office   80%   3 
35  3/27/18  Credit   3,000  9.35%   9.3%   4/1/23  FL  Hospitality   68%   4 
36  10/4/19  Credit   6,000  10.00%   10.0%   10/6/24  NV  Office   75%   2 

      $ 554,795       5.2%          69%     

(1) First mortgage loans are first position mortgage loans and credit loans are mezzanine and subordinated loans.

(2) The term “L” refers to one-month LIBOR. As of June 30, 2021, one-month LIBOR was equal to 0.10%. Cash coupon is the stated 
rate on the loan. All-in yield is the present value of all future principal and interest payments on the loan and does not include any 
origination fees or deferred commitment fees. The total is the weighted average rate as of June 30, 2021. Our first mortgage loans are 
all floating rate and each contains a minimum LIBOR floor. The weighted average LIBOR floor for these loans is 1.41%.

(3) Maximum maturity assumes all extension options are exercised by the borrower, however loans may be repaid prior to such date. 

(4) Loan-to-value (“LTV”) was determined at loan origination and is not updated for subsequent property valuations or loan 
modifications. The total is the weighted average LTV. 

(5) Risk rating is the internal risk rating assigned by the Sub-Advisor. See “Note 3 – Commercial Mortgage Loans Held for Investment,” 
which is included in our notes to consolidated financial statements included in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q.

(6) Loan maturity date was extended to July 9, 2023.
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(7) The maturity date passed on the loan without repayment, and we sent the borrower a notice of default. The borrower has a contract 
for sale on the property securing the loan that is significantly in excess of the loan amount. We have been in discussions with the 
borrower on completing the sale and repaying the loan in full. Until the loan is repaid, the borrower is obligated to pay interest at a 
default cash coupon rate of L+9.50% per annum with a LIBOR floor of 1.75%. 

(8) Loan has been modified to capitalize a portion of its interest payment for a temporary period of time. The all-in yield assumes the 
timely payment of interest and principal through maturity.

We entered into two master repurchase agreements and a credit facility to fund our investment portfolio. As of June 30, 2021 and 
December 31, 2020, we had total borrowings of $386,198 (which is net of $45 of unamortized debt issuance costs) and $290,699 (which 
is net of $27 of unamortized debt issuance costs), respectively. During the six months ended June 30, 2021 and the year ended December 
31, 2020, we had weighted average borrowings of $319,722 and $378,136 and weighted average borrowing costs of 2.6% and 2.7%, 
respectively. The increase in borrowings was due to loan originations that were financed under the master repurchase agreements and 
credit facility. The decrease in the weighted average borrowing costs was primarily due to the change in LIBOR during the period. 

Results of Operations 

Comparison of the Three Months Ended June 30, 2021 to the Three Months Ended June 30, 2020

Net Interest Income 

Net interest income is generated on our interest-earning assets less related interest-bearing liabilities. The following table presents the 
average balance of interest-earning assets less related interest-bearing liabilities, associated interest income and expense and 
corresponding yield earned and incurred for the periods indicated. 

  Three Months Ended June 30,
  2021   2020

  

Average
Carrying
Value (1)   

Interest
Income/

Expense (2)(3)   

Weighted Average
Yield/Financing

Cost (4)   

Average
Carrying
Value (1)   

Interest
Income/

Expense (2)   

Weighted Average
Yield/Financing

Cost (4)   
Interest-earning assets:                          
Real estate securities  $ —  $ —  0.0%   $ 101,356  $ 1,077  4.2%   
Commercial mortgage loans   516,671   7,223  5.5%    532,422   7,691  5.7%   

Total/Weighted Average  $ 516,671  $ 7,223  5.5%   $ 633,778  $ 8,768  5.5%   
Interest-bearing liabilities:                          
Repurchase agreements—securities  $ —  $ —  0.0%   $ 58,954  $ 525  3.5%   
Repurchase agreements—commercial
   mortgage loans   343,944   2,211  2.5%    351,559   2,158  2.4%   
Credit facility - loans   2,208   21  3.8%               

Total/Weighted Average  $ 346,152  $ 2,232  2.5%   $ 410,513  $ 2,683  2.6%   
Net interest income/spread      $ 4,991  3.0%       $ 6,085  2.9%   
Average leverage %(5)   203.0%          183.9%         
Weighted average levered yield(6)          11.6%           10.8%   

(1) Based on amortized cost for real estate securities and principal amount for repurchase agreements. Amounts are calculated based 
on the average daily balance. 

(2) Includes the effect of amortization of premium or accretion of discount. 

(3) Interest income excludes $0 and $(9) for the three months ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively, related to bank deposits 
and Treasury bills not included in the investment portfolio. 

(4) Calculated as annualized interest income or expense divided by average carrying value. 

(5) Calculated by dividing total average interest-bearing liabilities by total average equity (total average interest-earning assets less 
total average liabilities). 

(6) Calculated by taking the sum of (i) the net interest spread multiplied by the average leverage and (ii) the weighted average yield 
on interest-earning assets.
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The decrease in our weighted average interest-earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities was due to the sale of CMBS during 2020, 
as well as loan payoffs. The change in the weighted average levered yield was due to the change in the portfolio composition and the 
changes in interest rates tied to LIBOR.

Revenue from Real Estate Owned

During the three months ended June 30, 2021, our hotel property generated $1,744 in revenue. We did not own any real estate during 
the three months ended June 30, 2020.

Operating Expenses 

Operating expenses for the three months ended June 30, 2021 and 2020 consisted of the following:

  Three Months Ended June 30,  
  2021   2020  

Advisory fee  $ 737  $ 1,557 
Debt finance costs   380   304 
Directors compensation   13   24 
Professional service fees   282   1,294 
Real estate owned operating expenses   1,457   — 
Depreciation and amortization   273   — 
Other expenses   296   247 

Total operating expenses  $ 3,438  $ 3,426  

Total operating expenses for the three months ended June 30, 2021 and 2020 were $3,438 and $3,426, respectively. The advisory fee 
decreased due to an agreement with the Advisor to waive 50% of the advisory fee, beginning with the month of January 2021 and 
terminating July 1, 2021, when the advisory agreement was amended and restated. The decrease in the professional service fees was 
primarily due to the write off of deferred costs for a collateralized loan obligation during the three months ended June 30, 2020 that we 
did not complete due to the economic impact of the COVID-19 pandemic. Offsetting these decreases, the increase in real estate owned 
operating expenses and depreciation and amortization were due to the Company’s ownership of the Renaissance O’Hare acquired 
through a deed-in-lieu of foreclosure transaction during August 2020. We did not hold any real estate during the three months ended 
June 30, 2020. 

Other Income (Loss)

For the three months ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, other income (loss) was $0 and ($1,644), respectively. The other income (loss) in 
the three months ended June 30, 2020 is from a realized loss on the sale of a commercial loan of $375, and a provision for loan losses 
of $(1,265) primarily related to the deed-in-lieu of foreclosure for the Renaissance O’Hare that was completed later in 2020.

Net Income

For the three months ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, our net income was $3,298 and $1,006, or $0.28 and $0.09 per share (basic and 
diluted), respectively. The increase in net income was primarily due to a provision for loan losses and a realized loss on the sale of a 
commercial loan during the three months ended June 30, 2020 that did not recur in 2021. There were also lower advisory fees and 
professional service fees during the three months ended June 30, 2021. This was partially offset by reduced net interest income during 
the three months ended June 30, 2021 from having lower weighted average interest-earning assets and interest-liabilities in 2021 
compared to 2020.
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Comparison of the Six Months Ended June 30, 2021 to the Six Months Ended June 30, 2020

Net Interest Income 

Net interest income is generated on our interest-earning assets less related interest-bearing liabilities. The following table presents the 
average balance of interest-earning assets less related interest-bearing liabilities, associated interest income and expense and 
corresponding yield earned and incurred for the periods indicated. 

  Six Months Ended June 30,  
  2021   2020  

  

Average
Carrying
Value (1)   

Interest
Income/

Expense (2)(3)   

Weighted Average
Yield/Financing

Cost (4)   

Average
Carrying
Value (1)   

Interest
Income/

Expense (2)   

Weighted Average
Yield/Financing

Cost (4)  
Interest-earning assets:                         
Real estate securities  $ —  $ —  0.0%   $ 129,275  $ 3,202  4.9%  
Commercial mortgage loans   483,653   13,674  5.6%    532,711   15,771  5.9%  

Total/Weighted Average  $ 483,653  $ 13,674  5.6%   $ 661,986  $ 18,973  5.7%  

Interest-bearing liabilities:                         
Repurchase agreements—securities  $ —  $ —  0.0%   $ 84,083  $ 1,358  3.2%  
Repurchase agreements—commercial 
mortgage loans   318,612   4,104  2.6%    352,628   5,287  3.0%  
Credit facility - loans   1,110   21  3.8%    —   —  0.0%  

Total/Weighted Average  $ 319,722  $ 4,125  2.6%   $ 436,711  $ 6,645  3.0%  

Net interest income/spread      $ 9,549  3.0%       $ 12,328  2.7%  
Average leverage %(5)   195.0%          193.9%        
Weighted average levered yield (6)          11.6%           10.8%  

(1) Based on amortized cost for real estate securities and principal amount for repurchase agreements. Amounts are calculated based 
on the average daily balance. 

(2) Includes the effect of amortization of premium or accretion of discount. 

(3) Interest income excludes $0 and $142 for the six months ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively, related to bank deposits and 
Treasury bills not included in the investment portfolio. 

(4) Calculated as annualized interest income or expense divided by average carrying value. 

(5) Calculated by dividing total average interest-bearing liabilities by total average equity (total average interest-earning assets less 
total average liabilities). 

(6) Calculated by taking the sum of (i) the net interest spread multiplied by the average leverage and (ii) the weighted average yield 
on interest-earning assets.

The decrease in our weighted average interest-earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities was due to the sale of CMBS during 2020, 
as well as loan payoffs. The change in the weighted average levered yield was due to the change in the portfolio composition and the 
changes in interest rates tied to LIBOR.

Revenue from Real Estate Owned

During the six months ended June 30, 2021, our hotel property generated $2,612 in revenue. We did not own any real estate during the 
six months ended June 30, 2020.
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Operating Expenses 

Operating expenses for the six months ended June 30, 2021 and 2020 consisted of the following:

  Six Months Ended June 30,  
  2021   2020  

Advisory fee  $ 1,474  $ 2,401 
Debt finance costs   811   558 
Directors compensation   34   48 
Professional service fees   506   1,512 
Real estate owned operating expenses   3,612   — 
Depreciation and amortization   545   — 
Other expenses   516   472 

Total operating expenses  $ 7,498  $ 4,991  

Total operating expenses for the six months ended June 30, 2021 and 2020 were $7,498 and $4,991, respectively. The increase was 
primarily due to the increase in real estate owned operating expenses and depreciation and amortization from the hotel acquired through 
a deed-in-lieu of foreclosure transaction during August 2020. We did not hold any real estate during the six months ended June 30, 2020. 
The debt finance costs primarily increased due to an increase in amortization from the extension fees related to the CF Repo Facility 
and the addition of the WA Credit Facility. Professional service fees decreased primarily due to the write-off of deferred costs for a 
collateralized loan obligation in the six months ended June 30, 2020. In order to support the performance of the Company, the Advisor 
agreed to waive 50% of its advisory fee beginning with the month of January 2021 and continuing until July 1, 2021.

Other Income (Loss)

For the six months ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, other income (loss) was $0 and $(44,331), respectively. During the six months ended 
June 30, 2020, the fair value of the real estate securities held decreased due to the economic impact of the COVID-19 pandemic. These 
losses did not recur during 2021, as all the real estate securities were sold during the year ended December 31, 2020. There was also a 
provision for loan losses of $(5,765) recorded during the six months ended June 30, 2020 primarily related to the deed-in-lieu of 
foreclosure for the Renaissance O’Hare. 

Net Income (Loss)

For the six months ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, our net income (loss) was $4,663 and $(36,852), or $0.40 and $(3.21) per share (basic 
and diluted), respectively. The increase in net income was primarily due to losses on real estate securities during the six months ended 
June 30, 2020 that did not recur in 2021 as all the real estate securities were sold during the year ended December 31, 2020. 

Non-GAAP Financial Measures

Funds from Operations and Modified Funds from Operations

We use Funds from Operations (“FFO”), a widely accepted metric, to evaluate our performance. FFO provides a supplemental measure 
to compare our performance and operations to other REITs. Due to certain unique operating characteristics of real estate companies, the 
National Association of Real Estate Investment Trusts (“NAREIT”) has promulgated a standard known as FFO, which it believes more 
accurately reflects the operating performance of a REIT. As defined by NAREIT, FFO means net income computed in accordance with 
generally accepted accounting principles (“GAAP”), excluding gains (or losses) from sales of operating property, plus depreciation and 
amortization and after adjustments for unconsolidated entities. In addition, NAREIT has further clarified the FFO definition to add-back 
impairment write-downs of depreciable real estate or of investments in unconsolidated entities that are driven by measurable decreases 
in the fair value of depreciable real estate and to exclude the earnings impacts of cumulative effects of accounting changes. We have 
adopted the NAREIT definition for computing FFO.

Due to the unique features of publicly registered, non-listed REITs, the Institute for Portfolio Alternatives (“IPA”), an industry trade 
group, published a standardized measure known as Modified Funds from Operations (“MFFO”), which the IPA has promulgated as a 
supplemental measure for publicly registered non-listed REITs and which may be another appropriate supplemental measure to reflect 
the operating performance of a non-listed REIT.

The IPA defines MFFO as FFO adjusted for acquisition fees and expenses, amounts relating to straight line rents and amortization of 
premiums on debt investments, non-recurring impairments of real estate-related investments, mark-to-market adjustments included in 
net income, non-recurring gains or losses included in net income from the extinguishment or sale of debt, hedges, foreign exchange, 
derivatives or securities holdings where trading of such holdings is not a fundamental attribute of the business plan, unrealized gains or 
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losses resulting from consolidation from, or deconsolidation to, equity accounting, and after adjustments for consolidated and 
unconsolidated partnerships and joint ventures.

We define MFFO in accordance with the concepts established by the IPA and adjust FFO for certain items, such as amortization of 
premium and discounts on real estate securities. We purchase real estate securities at a premium or discount to par value, and in 
accordance with GAAP, record the amortization of premium/accretion of the discount to interest income. We believe that excluding the 
amortization of premiums and discounts provides better insight to the expected contractual cash flows. In addition, we adjust FFO for 
unrealized gains or losses on real estate securities. Any mark-to-market or fair value adjustments are based on general market or overall 
industry conditions and may be temporary in nature.

Because MFFO may be a recognized measure of operating performance within the non-listed REIT industry, MFFO and the adjustments 
used to calculate it may be useful in order to evaluate our performance against other non-listed REITs. Like FFO, MFFO is not equivalent 
to our net income or loss as determined under GAAP, as detailed in the table below, and MFFO may not be a useful measure of the 
impact of long-term operating performance on value if we continue to acquire a significant amount of investments.

Our presentation of FFO and MFFO may not be comparable to other similarly titled measures presented by other REITs. We believe 
that the use of FFO and MFFO provides a more complete understanding of our operating performance to stockholders and to 
management, and when compared year over year, reflects the impact on our operations from trends in operating costs, general and 
administrative expenses, and interest costs. Neither FFO nor MFFO is intended to be an alternative to “net income” or to “cash flows 
from operating activities” as determined by GAAP as a measure of our capacity to pay distributions. Management uses FFO and MFFO 
to compare our operating performance to that of other REITs and to assess our operating performance.

Neither the SEC, any other regulatory body nor NAREIT has passed judgment on the acceptability of the adjustments that we use to 
calculate FFO or MFFO. In the future, the SEC, another regulatory body or NAREIT may decide to standardize the allowable 
adjustments across the non-listed REIT industry and we would have to adjust our calculation and characterization of FFO or MFFO.

Our FFO and MFFO are calculated as follows:

 Three months ended June 30,   Six months ended June 30,  

 2021   2020   2021   2020  

GAAP net income (loss) $ 3,298  $ 1,006  $ 4,663  $ (36,852)
Depreciation and amortization  273   —   545   — 
Funds from operations $ 3,571  $ 1,006  $ 5,208  $ (36,852)

                
Amortization of discount on real estate securities  —   (88)  —   (309)
Amortization of debt financing costs  380   304   811   558 
Non-cash adjustment for ground lease  95   —   189   — 
Provision for loan losses  —   1,265   —   5,765 
Realized loss on sale of commercial loan  —   375   —   375 
Unrealized (gain) loss on real estate securities  —   (19,284)  —   18,903 
Realized loss on sale of real estate securities  —   19,288   —   19,288 
Modified funds from operations $ 4,046  $ 2,866  $ 6,208  $ 7,728  

Net Asset Value

The purchase price per share for each class of our common stock in our IPO generally equals our prior month’s NAV per share, as 
determined monthly, plus applicable selling commissions and dealer manager fees. Our NAV for each class of shares is based on the 
net asset values of our investments, the addition of any other assets (such as cash on hand) and the deduction of any liabilities, including 
the allocation/accrual of any performance participation and any stockholder servicing fees applicable to such class of shares.

On March 24, 2020, our Board suspended (i) the sale of shares in our IPO, (ii) the operation of the SRP, (iii) the payment of distributions 
to our stockholders, and (iv) the operation of the DRP, effective as of April 6, 2020. These changes were made to allow us to maintain 
fiscal responsibility and respond accordingly to the unprecedented economic disruption resulting from the COVID-19 pandemic. In 
determining to suspend our IPO, the SRP, the payment of distributions and the DRP, our Board considered various factors, including 
the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on the economy, the inability to accurately calculate our NAV per share due to uncertainty, 
volatility and lack of liquidity in the market, our need for liquidity due to financing challenges related to additional collateral required 
by the banks that regularly finance our assets and these uncertain and rapidly changing economic conditions.
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As a result of these factors, we did not calculate our NAV for the months of March through May 2020. We resumed calculation of our 
NAV beginning as of June 30, 2020 following the Advisor’s determination that volatility in the market for our investments had declined 
and the U.S. economic outlook had improved. In August 2020, we resumed paying distributions monthly to stockholders of record for 
all classes of shares. On October 1, 2020, the SEC declared effective our post-effective amendment to our registration statement on 
Form S-11, thereby permitting us to resume offers and sales of shares of common stock in our IPO, including through the DRP.

On March 1, 2021, our SRP was reinstated for our stockholders requesting repurchase of shares as a result of the death or qualified 
disability of the holder. The first settlement of permitted repurchase requests was on March 31, 2021.

On July 1, 2021, our SRP was reinstated for all stockholders. Repurchase requests must be submitted on or after July 1, 2021. The first 
settlement of permitted repurchase requests was on July 30, 2021, the last business day of the month. In accordance with the terms of 
the SRP that allow us to repurchase fewer shares than the maximum amount permitted under the SRP, for the months of July, August 
and September 2021, the total amount of aggregate repurchases of shares (including Class P shares) is limited to no more than 1% of 
our aggregate NAV per month as of the last day of the previous calendar month and no more than 2.5% of our aggregate NAV per 
calendar quarter with NAV measured as of the last day of the previous calendar quarter. Beginning on October 1, 2021, the total amount 
of aggregate repurchases of shares is limited as set forth in the SRP (no more than 2% of our aggregate NAV per month as of the last 
day of the previous calendar month and no more than 5% of our aggregate NAV per calendar quarter with NAV measured as of the last 
day of the previous calendar quarter). Notwithstanding the foregoing, we may repurchase fewer shares than these limits in any month, 
or none. Further, our Board may modify, suspend or terminate our SRP if it deems such action to be in our best interest and the best 
interest of our stockholders.

The following table provides a breakdown of the major components of our NAV:

Components of NAV
As of

June 30, 2021  
Commercial mortgage loans $ 556,903 
Real estate owned, net  14,000 
Cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash  51,943 
Other assets  6,800 
Repurchase agreements - commercial mortgage loans  (371,848)
Credit facility payable  (14,350)
Reserve for negative impact of COVID on real estate owned(1)  (1,439)
Due to related parties  (2,382)
Distributions payable  (1,207)
Accrued interest payable  (351)
Accrued stockholder servicing fees(2)  (84)
Other liabilities  (2,827)
Net asset value $ 235,158 

Number of outstanding shares  11,642  

(1) As of December 31, 2020, we established as a component of the NAV calculation a reserve for the estimated negative impact of 
the COVID-19 pandemic during 2021 on real estate owned. The reduction in this reserve as of June 30, 2021 from December 31, 
2020 resulted from the net loss on real estate owned set forth below. Because we had already established a reserve for losses, the 
loss on real estate owned for the three months ended June 30, 2021 has no negative effect on the NAV. Below is a reconciliation 
of the reserve ($ in thousands):

Beginning reserve balance as of December 31, 2020  $ (2,250)
Less: Net loss on real estate owned for the six months ended June 30, 2021:     

Revenue from real estate owned   2,612 
Real estate owned operating expense   (3,612)
Non-cash adjustment for ground lease   189 

Net loss from real estate owned   (811)
Reserve balance as of June 30, 2021  $ (1,439)

(2) Stockholder servicing fees only apply to Class T, Class S, and Class D shares. For purposes of NAV, we recognize the stockholder 
servicing fee as a reduction of NAV on a monthly basis as such fee is paid. Under GAAP, we accrue the full cost of the stockholder 



34

servicing fee as an offering cost at the time we sell Class T, Class S, and Class D shares. As of June 30, 2021, we have accrued 
under GAAP $723 of stockholder servicing fees payable to the Dealer Manager related to the Class T and Class D shares sold. As 
of June 30, 2021, we have not sold any Class S shares and, therefore, we have not accrued any stockholder servicing fees payable 
to the Dealer Manager related to Class S shares. The Dealer Manager does not retain any of these fees, all of which are retained 
by, or reallowed (paid) to, participating broker-dealers and servicing broker-dealers for ongoing stockholder services performed 
by such broker-dealers.

The table below outlines our total NAV and NAV per share by share class as of June 30, 2021:
 Common Stock  
NAV Per Share Class P   Class A   Class T   Class S   Class D   Class I   Total  
Monthly NAV $ 204,808  $ 13,375  $ 8,111  $ —  $ 1,035  $ 7,823  $ 235,158 
Number of outstanding shares  10,143   661   401   —   51   387   11,642 
NAV per share as of June 30, 2021 $ 20.1925  $ 20.2386  $ 20.2375  $ —  $ 20.2338  $ 20.2393  $ 20.1991  

The following table reconciles stockholders’ equity per our consolidated balance sheet to our NAV:

Reconciliation of Stockholders’ Equity to NAV
As of

June 30, 2021  
Stockholders' equity per GAAP $ 238,301 
Adjustments:    
   Unamortized stockholder servicing fee  641 
   Unamortized offering costs  2,903 
   Real estate owned non-cash adjustments  1,125 
   Fair value real estate owned adjustment  (9,078)
   Fair value loan adjustment  1,266 
Net asset value $ 235,158  

Liquidity and Capital Resources 

Liquidity is a measurement of our ability to meet potential cash requirements, including ongoing commitments to pay distributions to 
our stockholders, fund investments, originate loans, repay borrowings, and other general business needs including the payment of our 
operating and administrative expenses. Our primary sources of funds for liquidity consist of the net proceeds from our IPO, net cash 
provided by operating activities, proceeds from repurchase agreements and other financing arrangements and future issuances of equity 
and/or debt securities. 

Cash Flow Analysis 

  Six months Ended June 30,   Change  
  2021   2020   2021 vs. 2020  

Net cash provided by operating activities  $ 4,694  $ 8,459  $ (3,765)
Net cash (used in) provided by investing activities  $ (112,992)  $ 47,727  $ (160,719)
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities  $ 88,134  $ (53,888)  $ 142,022  

We held cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash of $51,943 and $72,107 as of June 30, 2021 and December 31, 2020, respectively. 
Our cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash decreased due to loan originations during the six months ended June 30, 2021.

Our operating activities generated net cash of $4,694 and $8,459 for the six months ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively. The 
decrease in cash from operating activities was primarily due to the reduction in net interest income. During 2020, the Company sold all 
of the real estate securities held which was the primary cause for the $178,333 reduction in the average interest earning investments.

Our investing activities (used) provided net cash of $(112,992) and $47,727 for the six months ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, 
respectively. The primary driver of the change was due to larger originations of mortgage loans during the six months ended June 30, 
2021.

Our financing activities provided (used) net cash of $88,134 and $(53,888) for the six months ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, 
respectively. The net cash provided during the six months ended June 30, 2021 was driven by $81,167 of net drawings the repurchase 
agreement financing and $14,350 of drawings on the credit facility offset partially by distributions paid of $5,670. For the six months 
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ended June 30, 2020, the net cash used was primarily for $70,051 net paydowns on the repurchase agreement financing offset partially 
by $22,794 in net proceeds from the issuance of our common stock.

Repurchase Agreements and Credit Facilities

Commercial Mortgage Loans

On February 15, 2018, we, through our wholly owned subsidiary, entered into a master repurchase agreement (the “CF Repo Facility”) 
with Column Financial, Inc. as administrative agent for certain of its affiliates. The CF Repo Facility had an initial advance amount of 
$100,000 subject to a maximum advance amount of $250,000. We increased the advance amount in August 2018 to $175,000, and in 
January 2019 to $250,000. In March 2020, we temporarily increased the maximum advance amount to $300,000, and this increase 
expired on June 30, 2020 and the maximum advance amount reverted to $250,000. The initial term of the CF Repo Facility was 12 
months and we extended the maturity date in March 2020 to February 2021. During December 2020, the maturity date was further 
extended to December 2021. Advances under the CF Repo Facility for loans made before December 18, 2020 accrue interest at a per 
annum rate equal to the London Interbank Offered Rate (“LIBOR”) plus 2.25% with a 0.75% floor. Loans made on or after December 
18, 2020 accrue interest at a per annum annual rate equal to LIBOR plus 2.25% to 2.75% with a 0.25% to 0.75% floor. The CF Repo 
Facility is subject to certain financial covenants. We were in compliance with all financial covenant requirements as of June 30, 2021 
and December 31, 2020.

On May 6, 2019, we, through our wholly owned subsidiary, entered into an uncommitted master repurchase agreement (the “JPM Repo 
Facility”) with JPMorgan Chase Bank, National Association. The JPM Repo Facility provides up to $150,000 in advances that we expect 
to use to finance the acquisition or origination of eligible loans and participation interests therein. Advances under the JPM Repo Facility 
accrue interest at per annum rates equal to the sum of (i) the applicable LIBOR index rate plus (ii) a margin of between 1.75% to 2.50%, 
depending on the attributes of the purchased assets. The initial maturity date of the JPM Repo Facility is May 6, 2022, with a one-year 
extension at our option, which may be exercised upon the satisfaction of certain conditions. The JPM Repo Facility is subject to certain 
financial covenants. We were in compliance with all financial covenant requirements as of June 30, 2021 and December 31, 2020.

On March 10, 2021, we, through our wholly owned subsidiary, entered into WA Credit Facility with Western Alliance Bank. The WA 
Credit Facility provides for loan advances up to the lesser of $75,000 or the borrowing base. The borrowing base consists of eligible 
assets pledged to and accepted by Western Alliance in its discretion up to the lower of (i) 60% to 70% of loan-to-unpaid balance or (ii) 
45% to 50% of the loan-to-appraised value (depending on the property type underlying the asset, for both (i) and (ii)). Assets that would 
otherwise be eligible become ineligible after being pledged as part of the borrowing base for 36 months. Advances under the WA Credit 
Facility accrue interest at an annual rate equal to one-month LIBOR plus 3.25% with a floor of 4.0%. The initial maturity date of the 
WA Credit Facility is March 10, 2023. We have an option to convert the loan made pursuant to the WA Credit Facility upon its initial 
maturity to a term loan with the same interest rate and floor and a maturity of two years in exchange for, among other things, a conversion 
fee of 0.25% of the outstanding amount at the time of conversion. The WA Credit Facility requires maintenance of an average 
unrestricted aggregate deposit account balance with Western Alliance of not less than $3,750. Failure to meet the minimum deposit 
balance will result in, among other things, the interest rate of the WA Credit Facility increasing by 0.25% per annum for each quarter in 
which the compensating balances are not maintained. We were in compliance with all financial covenant requirements as of June 30, 
2021.

The JPM Repo Facility, CF Repo Facility and WA Credit Facility (collectively, the “Facilities”) are used to finance eligible loans and 
act in the manner of a revolving credit facility that can be repaid as our assets are paid off and re-drawn as advances against new assets.

The tables below show our Facilities as of June 30, 2021 and December 31, 2020:

June 30, 2021                 Weighted Average  

 
Committed 
Financing   

Amount
Outstanding(1)   

Accrued
Interest
Payable   

Collateral
Pledged   

Interest
Rate   

Days to
Maturity  

CF Repo Facility $ 250,000  $ 231,923  $ 230  $ 324,147   2.75%  171 
JPM Repo Facility  150,000   139,970   100   193,648   1.98%  310 
Repurchase agreements - 
commercial mortgage 
loans  400,000   371,893   330   517,795   2.46%  223 
WA Credit Facility  75,000   14,350   21   20,500   4.00%  618 
 $ 475,000  $ 386,243  $ 351  $ 538,295   2.52%  238  
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December 31, 2020                 Weighted Average  

 
Committed 
Financing   

Amount
Outstanding(1)   

Accrued
Interest
Payable   

Collateral
Pledged   

Interest
Rate   

Days to
Maturity  

                        
CF Repo Facility $ 250,000  $ 159,948  $ 187  $ 228,359   3.00%  352 
JPM Repo Facility  150,000   130,778   105   190,047   2.08%  126 
 $ 400,000  $ 290,726  $ 292  $ 418,406   2.58%  250  

(1) Excludes $45 and $27 of unamortized debt issuance costs at June 30, 2021 and December 31, 2020, respectively.

Distributions 

Distributions declared on Class P shares for January and February of 2020 were based on monthly record dates, payable in arrears the 
following month, equal to a monthly amount of 1/12th of $1.92 per share. For each class of common stock offered in the IPO, in January 
and February of 2020 we paid the same gross distribution based on monthly record dates, payable in arrears the following month, equal 
to a monthly amount of 1/12th of $1.62 per share. On March 24, 2020, our Board suspended the payment of distributions to our 
stockholders. 

In determining to suspend the payment of distributions and the DRP, our Board considered various factors, including the impact of the 
COVID-19 pandemic on the economy, the inability to accurately calculate our NAV per share due to uncertainty, volatility and lack of 
liquidity in the market, our need for liquidity due to financing challenges related to additional collateral required by the banks that 
regularly finance our assets and these uncertain and rapidly changing economic conditions. Though we did not calculate the NAV for 
the months of March, April and May 2020, our Advisor subsequently determined that there was reduced volatility in the market for our 
investments and some improvement in the U.S. economic outlook and resumed calculation of the NAV beginning as of June 30, 2020. 

On July 14, 2020, in anticipation of the potential future reinstatement of the distribution reinvestment plan, our Board approved an 
amended and restated DRP, which became effective on August 7, 2020. As amended, stockholders who hold Class P shares may now 
elect to participate in the DRP, and cash distributions with respect to Class P shares will be applied to the purchase of Class I shares. 
The DRP resumed on October 1, 2020 when the SEC declared effective our post-effective amendment to our registration statement on 
Form S-11.

In August 2020, we resumed paying distributions monthly to stockholders of record for all classes of shares. The table below presents 
the aggregate annualized and monthly distributions declared by record date for all classes of shares since we resumed paying 
distributions.

Record date  

Aggregate annualized 
gross distribution 
declared per share   

Aggregate monthly 
gross distribution 
declared per share  

July 31, 2020  $ 0.8576  $ 0.0715 
August 31, 2020  $ 0.8800  $ 0.0733 
September 30, 2020  $ 0.9000  $ 0.0750 
October 31, 2020  $ 0.9000  $ 0.0750 
November 30, 2020  $ 0.9000  $ 0.0750 
December 31, 2020  $ 0.9000  $ 0.0750 
January 31, 2021  $ 0.9500  $ 0.0792 
February 28, 2021  $ 1.0000  $ 0.0833 
March 31, 2021  $ 1.0500  $ 0.0875 
April 30, 2021  $ 1.1000  $ 0.0917 
May 31, 2021  $ 1.1500  $ 0.0958 
June 30, 2021  $ 1.2500  $ 0.1042  
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The gross distribution was reduced for certain classes of our common stock for applicable class-specific expenses to arrive at the net 
distribution amount for those classes. During the six months ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, we did not have shares outstanding of Class 
S common stock. 

  Six Months Ended June 30,  
  2021   2020  

Distributions         
   Paid in cash  $ 5,670  $ 5,098 
   Reinvested in shares   260   127 
       Total distributions  $ 5,930  $ 5,225 

   Cash flows from operating activities  $ 4,694  $ 8,459  

(1) For the six months ended June 30, 2021, 79.2% of our distributions were paid from cash flow from operating activities during the 
six month period, and 20.8% of our distributions were paid from cash flows from operating activities generated during the year 
ended December 31, 2020. For the, six months ended June 30, 2020, our distributions were paid from cash flows from operating 
activities.

Contractual Obligations and Commitments 

Our contractual obligations, excluding expected interest payments, as of June 30, 2021 and December 31, 2020 are summarized as 
follows: 

As of June 30, 2021  
Less than

1 Year   
1 to 3
Years   

3 to 5
Years   

More than
5 Years   Total  

Borrowings under repurchase agreements -
   commercial mortgage loans(1)   371,893   —   —   —   371,893 
Credit facility payable   —   14,350   —   —   14,350 
Rental payments under ground lease (2)   1,611   3,275   3,543   270,573   279,002 

Total  $ 373,504  $ 17,625  $ 3,543  $ 270,573  $ 665,245 

                     
As of December 31, 2020                     

Borrowings under repurchase agreements -
   commercial mortgage loans(1)   290,726   —   —   —   290,726 
Rental payments under ground lease (2)   1,611   3,222   3,515   271,459   279,807 
Total  $ 292,337  $ 3,222  $ 3,515  $ 271,459  $ 570,533  

(1) Excludes $45 and $27 of unamortized debt issuance costs at June 30, 2021 and December 31, 2020, respectively.
(2) The ground lease was assumed as part of a deed-in-lieu of foreclosure transaction on the Renaissance O’Hare during 

the year ended December 31, 2020.

We have made a commitment to advance additional funds under certain of our CRE loans if the borrower meets certain conditions. As 
of June 30, 2021, we had 28 of such loans with a total remaining future funding commitment of $72,805. As of December 31, 2020, we 
had 20 of such loans with a total remaining future funding commitment of $50,940. The future funding commitments are advanced if 
the borrower has met certain loan specific requirements. 

Critical Accounting Policies

Disclosures discussing all critical accounting policies are set forth in our Annual Report under the heading “Summary of Critical 
Accounting Policies.” There have been no changes to our critical accounting policies during the six months ended June 30, 2021.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We currently have no off-balance sheet arrangements that are reasonably likely to have a material current or future effect on our financial 
condition, changes in financial condition, revenues or expenses, results of operations, liquidity, capital expenditures or capital resources. 
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Subsequent Events

For information related to subsequent events, reference is made to “Note 15 – Subsequent Events” which is included in our notes to 
consolidated financial statements included in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q.

Our Corporate Information

Our principal executive offices are located at 2901 Butterfield Rd., Oak Brook, Illinois 60523, our telephone number is (800) 826-8228 
and our website is www.inland-investments.com/inpoint. From time to time, we may use our website as a distribution channel for material 
company information. Our website is not incorporated by reference in or otherwise a part of this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q. We 
will provide without charge a copy of this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q upon written request delivered to our principal executive 
offices. We electronically file our Annual Report on Form 10-K, Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q, Current Reports on Form 8-K, proxy 
statements and all amendments to those reports with the SEC. The SEC maintains an Internet site at www.sec.gov that contains reports, 
proxy and information statements and other information regarding issuers that file electronically.

Item 3.  Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk 

Credit Risk 

Our investments are subject to a high degree of credit risk. Credit risk is the exposure to loss from loan defaults. Default rates are subject 
to a wide variety of factors, including, but not limited to, borrower financial condition, property performance, property management, 
supply/demand factors, construction trends, consumer behavior, regional economics, interest rates, the strength of the U.S. economy, 
and other factors beyond our control. All loans are subject to some risk of default. We manage credit risk through the underwriting 
process and investment structuring process, acquiring our investments at the appropriate discount to face value, if any, and establishing 
loss assumptions. We also carefully monitor the performance of the loans, as well as external factors that may affect their value. 

We also carefully monitor the performance of the loans, as well as external factors that may affect their level of risk and accordingly 
their value and the market prices of any mortgage-related securities we may own, such as CMBS that are collateralized by borrower 
payments under mortgage loans. Adverse economic conditions could negatively impact hotels or tenants at commercial properties 
underlying our investments resulting in potential borrower delinquencies or defaults or declines in the values of properties that secure 
our investments, which could in turn impact the fundamental performance of mortgage-backed securities. Further, credit rating agencies 
may reassess transactions that are negatively impacted by these adverse changes, which may result in CMBS investments being 
downgraded and temporarily or permanently losing value. In particular, the COVID-19 pandemic and actions taken to try to contain its 
spread have caused severe volatility, dislocation and illiquidity in certain fixed income markets amidst forced selling of securities by 
market participants, including CMBS, at depressed market prices. The amount of financing we may receive under our CMBS repurchase 
agreements is directly related to our counterparties' valuation of our assets that serve as collateral for our outstanding repurchase 
agreement financing. Our CMBS repurchase agreements are typically short-term in nature, are renewable at the discretion of our lenders 
and do not contain guaranteed roll-over terms and have been periodically refinanced at current market rates. If we fail to repay the lender 
at maturity, the lender has the right to immediately sell the collateral and pursue us for any shortfall if the sales proceeds are inadequate 
to cover the repurchase agreement financing. If adverse market conditions such as those described above stemming from the pandemic 
recur, valuations will likely be reduced, and margin call risk under repurchase agreements will likely be elevated. We have addressed 
these risks by selling our CMBS investments and focusing our potential investments more on floating-rate first mortgage loans backed 
by multifamily, industrial and office properties while continuing to assess the ongoing and potential effects of the pandemic on the 
hospitality and retail sectors.

Interest Rate Risk 

Our market risk arises primarily from interest rate risk relating to interest rate fluctuations. Many factors including governmental 
monetary and tax policies, domestic and international economic and political considerations and other factors beyond our control 
contribute to interest rate risk. To meet our short and long-term liquidity requirements, we may borrow funds at fixed and variable rates. 
Our interest rate risk management objectives are to limit the impact of interest rate changes in earnings and cash flows and to lower our 
overall borrowing costs. To achieve these objectives, from time to time, we may enter into interest rate hedge contracts such as swaps, 
collars and treasury lock agreements in order to mitigate our interest rate risk with respect to various debt instruments. While hedging 
activities may insulate us against adverse changes in interest rates, they may also limit our ability to participate in benefits of lower 
interest rates with respect to our portfolio of investments with fixed interest rates. During the three months ended June 30, 2021 and 
2020, we did not engage in interest rate hedging activities. We do not hold or issue derivative contracts for trading or speculative 
purposes. We do not have any foreign denominated investments, and thus, we are not exposed to foreign currency fluctuations.

As of both June 30, 2021, and December 31, 2020, our investment portfolio was 97% and 96% variable rate investments based on 
LIBOR for various terms, respectively. Borrowings under our master repurchase agreements were short-term and at a variable rate. The 

http://www.sec.gov/
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following table quantifies the potential changes in interest income net of interest expense should interest rates increase or decrease by 
25 or 50 basis points, assuming that our current balance sheet was to remain constant and no actions were taken to alter our existing 
interest rate sensitivity: 
 

  Estimated Percentage Change in Interest Income Net of Interest Expense  
Change in Rates  June 30, 2021   December 31, 2020  

(-) 50 Basis Points   0.70%   1.13%
(-) 25 Basis Points   0.70%   1.13%
Base Interest Rate   0.00%   0.00%
(+) 25 Basis Points   (1.35)%  (1.96)%
(+) 50 Basis Points   (2.44)%  (3.92)%

For this analysis, LIBOR was assumed to not fall below zero. 

Item 4.  Controls and Procedures

Controls and Procedures

Our management has evaluated, with the participation of our principal executive and principal financial officers, the effectiveness of 
our disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Exchange Act) as of the end of the period 
covered by this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q. Based on that evaluation, the principal executive and principal financial officers have 
concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures were effective as of the end of the period covered by this Quarterly Report on 
Form 10-Q.

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting

There were no changes to our internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rule 13a-15(f) or Rule 15d-15(f)) 
during the three months ended June 30, 2021 that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal 
control over financial reporting.

Part II - Other Information

Item 1.  Legal Proceedings

In the ordinary course of business, we may become subject to litigation. We have no knowledge of material legal proceedings pending 
or known to be contemplated against us at this time.

Item 1A.  Risk Factors

Except as disclosed in Part II. Item 1A. “Risk Factors” in the Company’s quarterly report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 
31, 2021 as filed with the SEC on May 13, 2021, there have been no material changes to the risk factors disclosed in Part I, Item 1A of 
the Company’s annual report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2020, as filed with the SEC on March 19, 2021.

Item 2.  Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds

Recent Sales of Unregistered Equity Securities

We have not sold any securities which were not registered under the Securities Act during the period covered by this report.

Use of Proceeds (dollar amounts in thousands, except share data)

On May 3, 2019, our Registration Statement on Form S-11 (File No. 333-230465) for our IPO of up to $2,350,000 in shares of Class A, 
Class T, Class S, Class D and Class I common stock, was declared effective under the Securities Act. Inland Securities Corporation 
serves as our dealer manager for the IPO.
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The offering price for each class of our common stock is determined monthly and is made available on our website and in prospectus 
supplement filings. As of June 30, 2021, we received net offering proceeds of $36.7 million from the IPO. The following table 
summarizes certain information about the IPO proceeds:

  Class A
Shares   

Class T
Shares   

Class S
Shares   

Class D
Shares   

Class I
Shares   Total  

 Primary shares sold   660,884   400,774   —   51,173   383,921   1,496,752 
 Gross proceeds from primary offering  $ 17,308  $ 10,206  $ —  $ 1,237  $ 9,419  $ 38,170 
 Reinvestments of distributions   224   105   —   40   172   541 
    Total gross proceeds   17,532   10,311   —   1,277   9,591   38,711 
 Selling commissions and dealer 
manager fees   1,004   284   —   —   —   1,288 
 Stockholder servicing fees   —   615   —   108   —   723 
    Total expenses   1,004   899   —   108   —   2,011 
         Net offering proceeds(1)  $ 16,528  $ 9,412  $ —  $ 1,169  $ 9,591  $ 36,700  

(1) Excludes company-level offering costs of $4,130.

We primarily used the net offering proceeds from the IPO to originate commercial real estate loans and purchase real estate securities 
on a levered basis, subject to our investment guidelines and to the extent consistent with maintaining our REIT qualification, and other 
general corporate purposes.

On March 24, 2020, our Board suspended our IPO, effective immediately, and the DRP, effective April 6, 2020. In determining to 
suspend the IPO and the DRP, our Board considered various factors, including the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on the economy, 
the inability to accurately calculate our NAV per share due to uncertainty, volatility and lack of liquidity in the market, our need for 
liquidity due to financing challenges related to additional collateral required by the banks that regularly finance our assets and these 
uncertain and rapidly changing economic conditions. After determining that there had been reduced volatility in the market for the 
Company’s investments and some improvement in the U.S. economic outlook, our Advisor resumed calculation of the NAV beginning 
as of June 30, 2020, and on October 1, 2020, the SEC declared effective the post-effective amendment to the Company’s registration 
statement on Form S-11 thereby permitting the Company to resume offers and sales of shares of common stock in the IPO, including 
through the DRP. 

Repurchases of Common Stock

We have adopted the SRP, whereby on a monthly basis, stockholders may request that we repurchase all or any portion of their shares. 
The total amount of aggregate repurchases of shares will be limited to no more than 2% of our aggregate NAV per month as of the last 
day of the previous calendar month and no more than 5% of our aggregate NAV per calendar quarter with NAV measured as of the last 
day of the previous calendar quarter. Stockholders may not request that we repurchase their shares for at least one year, provided we 
can waive the holding period in the event of death. 

Due to the illiquid nature of investments in real estate, we may not have sufficient liquid resources to fund repurchase requests. We may 
choose to repurchase all, some or none of the shares that have been requested to be repurchased at the end of any particular month, in 
our discretion, subject to any limitations in the SRP. Further, our Board may modify, suspend or terminate the SRP.

On March 24, 2020, our Board suspended our SRP. In determining to suspend the SRP, our Board considered various factors, including 
the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on the economy, the inability to accurately calculate our NAV per share due to uncertainty, 
volatility and lack of liquidity in the market, our need for liquidity due to financing challenges related to additional collateral required 
by the banks that regularly finance our assets and uncertain and rapidly changing economic conditions. As a result of these factors, we 
did not calculate our NAV for the months of March through May 2020. We resumed calculation of our NAV beginning as of June 30, 
2020 following the Advisor’s determination that volatility in the market for our investments had declined and the U.S. economic 
outlook had improved.

On March 1, 2021, our SRP was reinstated for our stockholders requesting repurchase of shares as a result of the death or qualified 
disability of the holder. The first settlement of permitted repurchase requests was on March 31, 2021, the last business day of the month.

On July 1, 2021, our SRP was reinstated for all stockholders. Repurchase requests must be submitted on or after July 1, 2021. The first 
settlement of permitted repurchase requests was on July 30, 2021, the last business day of the month. In accordance with the terms of 
the SRP that allow us to repurchase fewer shares than the maximum amount permitted under the SRP, for the month of July, the Company 
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repurchased an amount of shares equal to an aggregate purchase price of 1.7% of the aggregate NAV as of June 30, 2021. For the months 
of August and September 2021, the total amount of aggregate repurchases of shares is expected to be limited to no more than 1% of our 
aggregate NAV per month as of the last day of the previous calendar month and for the third quarter we expect to repurchase no more 
than 2.5% of our aggregate NAV measured as of June 30, 2021, but the actual amounts repurchased may be less or more than the 
expected amounts up to the maximum limits provided for in the SRP. Beginning on October 1, 2021, the total amount of aggregate 
repurchases of shares is limited as set forth in the SRP (no more than 2% of our aggregate NAV per month as of the last day of the 
previous calendar month and no more than 5% of our aggregate NAV per calendar quarter with NAV measured as of the last day of the 
previous calendar quarter). Notwithstanding the foregoing, we may repurchase fewer shares than the limits in the SRP in any month or 
quarter, or none. Further, our Board may modify, suspend or terminate our SRP if it deems such action to be in our best interest and the 
best interest of our stockholders.

During the three months ended June 30, 2021, we repurchased shares of our common stock in the following amounts, which represented 
share repurchase requests received as a result of the death or qualified disability of the holder:

Period

 

Total Number of 
Shares Purchased  

 

Average Price Paid 
per Share  

 

Total Number of
Shares 

Purchased as
Part of Publicly

Announced Plans 
or Programs  

 

Maximum Number
of Shares that May
Yet Be Purchased
Under the Plans or

Programs(1)  
 April 1 - April 30, 2021  $ 2,778  $ 20.14   2,778   — 
 May 1 - May 31, 2021   —  $ -   —   — 
 June 1 - June 30, 2021   —  $ -   —   — 

   2,778  $ 20.14   2,778   — 
________________                 
(1) Repurchases are limited as described above.      

Item 3.  Defaults Upon Senior Securities

None.

Item 4.  Mine Safety Disclosures

Not Applicable.

Item 5.  Other Information

Not Applicable.
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Item 6.  Exhibits

The representations, warranties and covenants made by us in any agreement filed as an exhibit to this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q 
are made solely for the benefit of the parties to the agreement, including, in some cases, for the purpose of allocating risk among the 
parties to the agreement, and should not be deemed to be representations, warranties or covenants to, or with, you. Moreover, these 
representations, warranties and covenants should not be relied upon as accurately describing or reflecting the current state of our affairs.

The exhibits filed in response to Item 601 of Regulation S-K are listed on the Exhibit Index attached hereto and are incorporated herein 
by reference.

Exhibit No. Description

3.1 Articles of Amendment and Restatement of InPoint Commercial Real Estate Income, Inc. (filed as Exhibit 3.1 to the 
Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form 10 filed May 2, 2017 and incorporated by reference)

3.2 Articles of Amendment of InPoint Commercial Real Estate Income, Inc. (filed as Exhibit 3.1 to the Registrant’s Current 
Report on Form 8-K filed April 30, 2019 and incorporated by reference)

3.3 Articles Supplementary of InPoint Commercial Real Estate Income, Inc. (filed as Exhibit 3.2 to the Registrant’s Current 
Report on Form 8-K filed April 30, 2019 and incorporated by reference)

3.4 Certificate of Correction of InPoint Commercial Real Estate Income, Inc. (filed as Exhibit 3.4 to the Registrant’s 
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed August 14, 2019 and incorporated by reference)

3.5 Bylaws of InPoint Commercial Real Estate Income, Inc. (filed as Exhibit 3.2 to the Registrant’s Registration Statement 
on Form 10 filed May 2, 2017 and incorporated by reference)

4.1 Amended and Restated Distribution Reinvestment Plan (filed as Exhibit 4.1 to the Registrant’s Registration Statement on 
Form S-11 filed March 19, 2021 and incorporated by reference)

10.1 Agreement dated May 6, 2021, between InPoint JPM Loan LLC, a Delaware limited liability company, and InPoint 
Commercial Real Estate Income, Inc. and JPMorgan Chase Bank, National Association, a national banking association, 
extending the maturity date of the Master Repurchase Agreement and reaffirming the Guarantee of InPoint Commercial 
Real Estate Income, Inc. (filed as Exhibit 10.3 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed May 12, 2021 and 
incorporated by reference)

10.2 Second Amended and Restated Advisory Agreement, dated as of July 1, 2021, by and among InPoint Commercial Real 
Estate Income, Inc., InPoint REIT Operating Partnership, LP, and Inland InPoint Advisor, LLC (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to 
the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed July 8, 2021 and incorporated by reference)

10.3** Second Amended and Restated Sub-Advisory Agreement, dated as of July 1, 2021, between Inland InPoint Advisor, LLC 
and SPCRE InPoint Advisors, LLC (filed as Exhibit 10.2 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed July 8, 
2021 and incorporated by reference)

10.4 Expense Limitation Agreement made as of July 1, 2021 by and among InPoint Commercial Real Estate Income, Inc., 
Inland InPoint Advisor, LLC, and SPCRE InPoint Advisors, LLC (filed as Exhibit 10.3 to the Registrant’s Current Report 
on Form 8-K filed July 8, 2021 and incorporated by reference)

31.1* Certification of the Principal Executive Officer of the Company, pursuant to Securities Exchange Act Rule 13a-14 and 
15d-14 as adopted pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

31.2* Certification of the Principal Financial Officer of the Company, pursuant to Securities Exchange Act Rule 13a-14 and 
15d-14 as adopted pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

32.1* Certification of the Principal Executive Officer of the Company pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350 as adopted pursuant 
to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

32.2* Certification of the Principal Financial Officer of the Company pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350 as adopted pursuant 
to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

101.INS Inline XBRL Instance Document – the instance document does not appear in the Interactive Data File because XBRL tags 
are embedded within the Inline XBRL document.

101.SCH Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document
101.CAL Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document
101.DEF Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document
101.LAB Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document
101.PRE Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Document
104 Cover Page Interactive Data File (embedded within the Inline XBRL document)

* Filed as part of this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q
** Portions of the exhibit that are both (i) not material and (ii) would likely cause competitive harm to the registrant if publicly 

disclosed have been omitted from the exhibit. Brackets [****] have been used in the exhibit to indicate where information has 
been omitted.

http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1690012/000119312517152276/d385771dex31.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1690012/000119312517152276/d385771dex31.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1690012/000119312519128820/d736804dex31.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1690012/000119312519128820/d736804dex31.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1690012/000119312519128820/d736804dex32.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1690012/000119312519128820/d736804dex32.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1690012/000156459019032018/ck0001690012-ex34_440.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1690012/000156459019032018/ck0001690012-ex34_440.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1690012/000119312517152276/d385771dex32.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1690012/000119312517152276/d385771dex32.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1690012/000156459021014361/ck0001690012-posam.htm#APPENDIX_A_DISTRIBUTION_REINVESTMENT_PLN
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1690012/000156459021014361/ck0001690012-posam.htm#APPENDIX_A_DISTRIBUTION_REINVESTMENT_PLN
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1690012/000156459021026794/ck0001690012-ex103_6.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1690012/000156459021026794/ck0001690012-ex103_6.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1690012/000156459021026794/ck0001690012-ex103_6.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1690012/000156459021026794/ck0001690012-ex103_6.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1690012/000156459021026794/ck0001690012-ex103_6.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1690012/000156459021036069/ck0001690012-ex101_6.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1690012/000156459021036069/ck0001690012-ex101_6.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1690012/000156459021036069/ck0001690012-ex101_6.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1690012/000156459021036069/ck0001690012-ex102_7.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1690012/000156459021036069/ck0001690012-ex102_7.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1690012/000156459021036069/ck0001690012-ex102_7.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1690012/000156459021036069/ck0001690012-ex103_8.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1690012/000156459021036069/ck0001690012-ex103_8.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1690012/000156459021036069/ck0001690012-ex103_8.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1690012/000156459021044215/ck1690012-ex311_8.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1690012/000156459021044215/ck1690012-ex311_8.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1690012/000156459021044215/ck1690012-ex312_6.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1690012/000156459021044215/ck1690012-ex312_6.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1690012/000156459021044215/ck1690012-ex321_7.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1690012/000156459021044215/ck1690012-ex321_7.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1690012/000156459021044215/ck1690012-ex322_9.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1690012/000156459021044215/ck1690012-ex322_9.htm
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SIGNATURES 

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed 
on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized. 

INPOINT COMMERCIAL REAL ESTATE
INCOME, INC.

By: /s/ Mitchell A. Sabshon
Name: Mitchell A. Sabshon
Title: Chief Executive Officer and Chairman

(principal executive officer)
Date: August 13, 2021

By: /s/ Catherine L. Lynch
Name: Catherine L. Lynch
Title: Chief Financial Officer

(principal financial officer)
Date: August 13, 2021


